
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

July 18, 2018 – 1:30 PM 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 

Petaluma, CA 94954 

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of the June 6, 2018 Board Meeting Minutes

3. Public Comment on Non-agenda Items

4. Board Member Announcements

5. General Manager’s Report

6. Consent
a. Approve a Resolution to Authorize the Chair of the Board of Directors and the

General Manager to Execute funding-related agreements for available funds from
the Sonoma County Transportation Authority

7. Authorize SMART to hold a Community Celebration on August 18, 2018 and to add extra
train trips and offer free service August 18-19 to mark SMART’s First Year of Service

8. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract No. OT-PS-18-003 with Netwoven, Inc.
in the amount of $161,000 to perform Microsoft SharePoint Upgrades and Support Services

9. Authorize the General Manager to Enter into Purchase Agreements for a used Hyrail Rotary
Dump Truck and a used Lowrailer Utilizing a Competitive Negotiation Process in an amount
not to exceed $270,000

10. Approve a Resolution and Authorize the General Manager to Enter into Purchase and
Service Agreements in an aggregate amount of $700,000 and to Award Contract No. VS-SV-
18-001 to Alstom Transportation in an amount not to exceed $300,000 for the major repair
work of the Diesel Multiple Unit 110 and Provide Additional Expenditure of $600,000

Page 1 of 136



11. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Funding Agreement with Sonoma County
Transit for Sonoma County Transit Route 56 and Related Bus Stop Improvements at Airport
Boulevard/Sonoma County Airport SMART Station

12. Approve the Resolutions Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Change Order NOV-
001 to Contract No. CV-DB-16-001 with Stacy and Witbeck/Herzog JV and Amend the Fiscal
Year 2018-19 budget in an amount of $5,200,000 to complete the Novato Downtown
Station

13. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a First Amendment to SMART’s Lease
Agreement with Cornerstone Properties, SA, LLC, the owner of the building housing
SMART’s administrative functions in Petaluma

14. Update on Senate Bill 1029 North Coast Rail Authority (NCRA): Right-of-Way: Great
Redwood Trail Agency: Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit

15. Closed Session - Conference with General Manager, Farhad Mansourian, pursuant to
California Government Code Section 54956.8 regarding real estate property negotiations.

Property: Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District – RR Sq. property 
2 w. 3rd Street and 34 W. 6th St, Santa Rosa   

APN (s) #: 010-171-019, 010-166-003
Negotiating Parties: Farhad Mansourian, Cornerstone Properties, Forma LLC, 

Laulima Development and Lyon Street Ventures LLC 

16. Report out of Closed Session

17. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, September 19, 2018 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old
Redwood Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954

18. Adjournment

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that 
requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SMART at least 72 hours prior to 
the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. Please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707) 794-3072 or dial CRS 711 
for more information.  

DOCUMENTS: Documents distributed by SMART for its monthly Board meeting or committee meetings, and which are not 
otherwise privileged, may be inspected at SMART’s office located at 5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200, Petaluma, CA 94954 
during regular business hours. Documents may also be viewed on SMART’s website at: www.sonomamarintrain.org. Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to SMART after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection at 
the SMART Office. For information about accessing SMART meetings by public transit, use the trip planner at www.511.org 

Page 2 of 136



Page 1 of 10 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  

June 6, 2018 - 1:30 PM  
5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 

Petaluma, CA 94954 

1. Call to Order

Chair Fudge called the meeting to order at 1:30pm. Directors Eddie, Lucan, Mackenzie,
Hillmer, Pahre, Phillips, Rabbitt and Zane were present. Directors Arnold, Connolly, and
Russell absent.

2. Approval of the May 16, 2018 Board Meeting Minutes

MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved approval of May 16, 2018 corrected minutes. Director
Lucan second. The motion carried 8-0. (Director Fudge abstain; Directors Arnold,
Connolly, and Russell absent).

3. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

Jack Swearingen voiced his concerns about the Jennings Avenue Crossing. He urged the
Board to agendized this topic.

Duane Bellinger voiced his concerns about the Lomas contract. He illustrated a map of
the Corona/McDowell property; however, the map does not disclose any provisions. He
stated that the map would have avoided problems.

4. Board Member Announcements

Chair Fudge congratulated Director Rabbitt for his re-election as Sonoma County Board
of Supervisor District 2 representative.

Director Mackenzie announced that the preliminary results for Regional Measure 3 are
favorable.

Chair Fudge announced that SMART was awarded the 29th Annual California
Transportation Foundation Award for Transit/Rail Project of the year.

Page 3 of 136



Page 2 of 10 

Director Zane announced that she was invited to join the Board of the National Council 
for Science and Environment (NCSE) in Washington, DC. 

5. General Manager’s Report

General Manager Mansourian illustrated a video of the three finalists for the 29th Annual
California Transportation Foundation Award for Transit/Rail Project of the year. SMART
has carried approximately 537,000 passengers and 46,000 bicycles since start of
passenger service in August 2017.

He announced that SMART received four (4) proposals for the Railroad Square Property
in Santa Rosa. The firms are as follows in alphabetic order: 1) Cornerstone/Burbank
Housing; 2) FORMA and EAH Housing; 3) Laulima Development Corp. and 4) Lyon Street
Ventures, LLC. The Sub-Committee will be evaluating the proposals and report
recommendations to the Board.

Director Mackenzie stated that Laulima Development Corporation owns the 33-acres
property near the Rohnert Park Station (formerly State Farm site). They have submitted
development plans to the City of Rohnert Park and have a website called
“stationaverp.com” where you can find information regarding the project. Also, He will
refrain himself from making comments since they have expressed interest in SMART.

General Manager Mansourian stated that Senate Bill 1029 was approved by the Senate
with 36-0 vote and will move to Assembly. SMART will continue to work with Senator
McGuire to secure all the cautionary language (liability and expenditure).

On Saturday, June 2nd, SMART and Directors Connolly and Phillips hosted the ceremony
for the San Rafael Pedestrian–Bicycle Pathway. On Saturday, June 23, 2018 at 9:00am
Directors Arnold and Lucan will host the ceremony at Novato San Marin Station.

Lastly, he stated that Chief Welch will give an update and presentation of the Truck/Train
accident that occurred on May 31st. He explained because there is an ongoing
investigation he will not be able to answer all questions. He illustrated a video of D
Street/Washington intersection in Petaluma of a driver not following the traffic laws and
asked the Board to encourage local officials to enforce traffic laws near railroad crossings.

Chief Welch gave a presentation of the accident and highlights as follows:

Incident Summary
▪ May 31st at 3:20pm
▪ 3- car train traveling north approaching Todd Road
▪ 47 passengers and 3 employees on board
▪ Container truck traveling west on Todd Road
▪ All safety equipment at crossing were working-bells, lights and gate arms

Page 4 of 136



Page 3 of 10 

▪ Preliminary investigation stated that the truck made no attempt to stop, broke
through gate and spun and sheered off utility pole (AT&T)

▪ Driver of the truck was taken by paramedics and transported to hospital
▪ Illustrated pictures of the accident

Post-Accident 
▪ Checked on passengers and crew
▪ The damage train did not have power and the intercom did not function. The

Engineer-Conductors provided verbal updates to passengers
▪ Passengers were moved to the undamaged train cars (power, restrooms snack bar

were available)
▪ Uncoupled 3rd car (damaged car) from 2 train set and transported the passengers to

the Rohnert Park Station
▪ California Highway Patrol (CHP) cleared roadway from debris in a timely manner
▪ Vehicle and Track was inspected and deemed safe to move
▪ Train control and signal system was inspected
▪ Maintenance of Way staff has safety equipment and repaired gate arms within 30

minutes
▪ Bus Bridge had been established and Golden Gate Transit was able to help, however

the bus was unable to maneuver some streets in Rohnert Park and riders had to walk
to Raley’s down the street.

Next Steps 
The CHP is conducting the investigation and once completed they will provide SMART 
with the written report. Also, SMART will continue its own investigation with vehicle, 
schedule, lessons learned and Administrative tasks. 

Chief Welch thanked and acknowledged Firefighters, Paramedics, AT&T staff and CHP for 
their excellent response to the accident. She encouraged all riders to subscribe to SMART 
Nixle Alert System to receive updates.  

Comments 
Director Zane asked if SMART’s Nixle Alert System has a separate sign up. Chief Welch 
responded yes and the public can sign up by texting the word SMART to 888777. Director 
Zane suggested that SMART conducts outreach regarding the notification system. Also, in 
Sonoma County and in Santa Rosa the topic of an Alert System has highly been discussed. 
She said that she has not been an opponent of Quiet Zones and think drivers are visually 
distracted with their cellular phones, so they need redundancy like hearing the bells, 
whistles and horn.  She does not feel safe driving across grade crossing that are Quiet 
Zones. She asked the Board to agendize the topic of Quiet Zone, since it’s a relative subject 
to alert drivers at grade crossings. 

Director Rabbitt stated that if Petaluma Police were at the location when the driver 
violated traffic laws, the driver would have been cited. He asked if there were additional 

Page 5 of 136



Page 4 of 10 

resources that SMART could receive for traffic cameras at railroad crossings. Mr. 
Mansourian responded that Chief Welch worked with the Police and Fire Chiefs of Marin 
and Sonoma Counties to identify the most difficult intersections in both counties to 
submit a grant requesting safety cameras. The State of California awarded SMART 
approximately $100K, however, it was rejected by the Federal Government since SMART 
had not had an accident or fatalities at that time. SMART will continue to pursue this grant 
for surveillance safety cameras. 

Mr. Mansourian acknowledged and thanked Superintendent of Maintenance of Way, 
Marc Bader and his staff for their quick response and repairs after the accident. He also 
mentioned that the vehicle (train) can take several months to repair, and the cost will be 
several hundred thousand dollars. The Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance, Husani 
Longstreet and his staff are inspecting the entire vehicle and will keep the Board informed 
of the progress.   

Chief Welch stated that the train was traveling at 77 mph at the time of the accident 
where the maximum speed is 79 mph. 

Director Phillips thanked the General Manager Mansourian and staff for all the efforts 
during the accident and is glad that nobody was seriously hurt. He asked if there are any 
lessons learned that he could inform the City of San Rafael Police and Fire Department. 
Chief Welch responded that SMART’s process is to conduct a debriefing 
internally/externally with all involved partners, once that process is complete the 
information is shared with other agencies.  

Director Zane asked if the truck driver represents a company. Additionally, she asked if 
the Board will be informed of the total accident cost? Mr. Mansourian responded that 
investigation and cost of repair is being conducted. Director Zane asked if SMART has 
cameras at railroad crossings. Mr. Mansourian responded no, the video of the accident 
was from a surveillance camera of a construction company near the intersection. She 
asked if SMART plans to install cameras at gate crossings to evaluated the most dangerous 
crossings. Mr. Mansourian responded that the installation of cameras at 63 gate crossing 
cost millions. SMART has applied for grants and was awarded $100K, however the Federal 
Government overruled the grant, we will continue to pursue any available grants 
available.  

Director Lucan clarified that based on Director Zane’s comments to which 
crossing/intersections are more dangerous than others, the activities that we have seen 
(from videos) shows people behaving badly. The question is which crossing/intersections 
are prone for people to behave badly.  

Director Eddie stated that SMART runs 34 trips a day and now will be short 1 train; that 
can cause problems with the schedule. Mr. Mansourian responded that SMART runs 6 
trains a day and stores 2 trains for emergencies. Also, SMART will have to adjust the train 

Page 6 of 136



Page 5 of 10 

sets that were used during commute hours. SMART will be receiving four (4) additional 
trains by the end of 2018.  Director Eddie suggested that SMART conducts outreach to 
inform the public that the train does not stop at intersections. 

Director Mackenzie suggested that SMART continues to communicate with the public of 
any updates/changes to SMART schedule as most commuters are on a set schedule and 
like to be informed.  

Chair Fudge stated that SMART’s social media post, have improved tremendously and 
encouraged staff to continue to inform the public of any daily updates and/or changes to 
SMART’s schedule.  

Duane Bellinger congratulated SMART in receiving the award and the increase in 
ridership. He also watched a truck get hit by the arm gates at D Street/Washington Street, 
Petaluma last year. He asked if the arm gates are programmed to move up once it hits a 
vehicle.  Chair Fudge stated that the vehicle drove under the gate arms on the video that 
was shown. 

Daisy Pistey-Lyhne (Sonoma County Conservation Action Director) urged the Board 
member to direct SMART’s staff to begin construction at the Jennings Avenue Crossing. 
She stated that California Public Utility Commission approved the crossing in 2016 and 
funding can be lost if the City of Santa Rosa and SMART can’t reach an agreement. She 
suggested starting a mediation to reach an agreement. Mr. Mansourian responded that 
he is not aware of any funding being jeopardize. Also, Director Zane and Chair Fudge have 
requested various meetings with the City of Santa Rosa to discuss this topic and have not 
been successful. Chair Fudge and Director Zane suggested that any member of the public 
should contact the City of Santa Rosa Council to address their concerns regarding the 
Jennings Avenue Crossing.  

6. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment No. 4 to Contract No.
CV-PS-15-005 with RailPros, Inc. in the amount of $475,000 for Professional Engineering
Services Support for the Larkspur Extension Project

Chief Engineer, Bill Gamlen gave an overview of the project and stated that the approval 
of this Contract Amendment will allow RailPros to continue to provide support during the 
construction of the Larkspur Extension Project. Their support will assist SMART with key 
civil, track, bridge and coordination tasks. They will provide technical support services 
which include: Specialty Railroad Inspections; Structural Engineering and Surveying; and 
System Integrations Coordination.  

Therefore, staff recommends approval of this Contract Amendment with RailPros. 

Page 7 of 136



Page 6 of 10 

MOTION: Director Eddie moved to approval to Authorize the General Manager to Execute 
Contract Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. CV-PS-15-005 with RailPros, Inc. in the 
amount of $475,000 for Professional Engineering Services Support for the Larkspur 
Extension Project as presented. Director Lucan second. The motion carried 9-0-0. 
(Directors Arnold, Connolly, and Russell absent)  

7. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract No. OP-SV-18-002 with Stacy and
Witbeck, Inc., in the amount of $463,776 to Perform Maintenance Surfacing along
SMART’s Right-of-Way

Operations Manager Duane Sayers gave an overview of the project and stated that the
approval of this Contract will allow the contractor to perform maintenance track
surfacing, lining and dressing. This type of work requires the use of specialized railroad
equipment and operators and will allow to maintain ride quality and train speed.

Comments
Director Rabbitt asked if the work had anything to do with the track subsurface. Mr.
Sayers responded that its for the geometry tolerance of the track and part of railroad
maintenance.

Chair Fudge asked if this work will eliminate some areas that shake. Mr. Sayers responded
yes.

Director Phillips asked if this type of work be conducted in-house. Mr. Sayers responded
that expensive special equipment is needed to perform this task and specialized
operators, however this contract is for 2 years.

Jack Swearingen asked why this type of work is needed after only 10 months of passenger
service.

MOTION: Director Zane moved approval to Authorize the General Manager to Execute
Contract No. OP-SV-18-002 with Stacy and Witbeck, Inc., in the amount of $463,776 to
Perform Maintenance Surfacing along SMART’s Right-of-Way as presented. Director
Rabbitt second. The motion carried 9-0-0. (Directors Arnold, Connolly, and Russell absent)

8. Approve a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Change Order MUP-
001 to Contract No. CV-DB-16-001 for the Construction of Approximately 0.5 miles of
Bicycle and Pedestrian Pathway between Andersen Drive and Rice Drive for the City of
San Rafael and to Amend the Existing 2017 Memorandum of Understanding between
SMART and City of San Rafael for the Larkspur Extension Project

Chief Engineer Bill Gamlen stated that the approval of this Change Order will allow the
construction of 0.5 miles of pathway in Downtown San Rafael between Anderson and Rice
Drive that runs parallel to the Larkspur Extension Project and funded by the City of San

Page 8 of 136



Page 7 of 10 

Rafael (City).  The City has been developing plans to construct this Pathway for a couple 
of years and has worked with SMART. They have completed environmental clearance, 
prepared construction documents, obtained regulatory permits from three agencies and 
secured funding.  The City has enough funds to construct approximately half of the 
pathway between Anderson and Rice Drive. This is the most difficult section of the 
pathway to construct once the SMART tracks are built. 

At the City request, SMART solicited pricing and schedule from our contractor to 
determine if it is feasible to add to the Larkspur Extension Project Contract. The contractor 
provided a price of $4,557,019 for the work and there is no scheduled impact if this work 
is added. The City is agreeable to the price and SMART identified and requested a 20% 
contingency to cover any unforeseen changes that might arise during the construction of 
the pathway. 

The City of San Rafael Council on June 4th meeting approved the price, contingency and 
authorized staff to work with SMART and include this work in the Larkspur Extension 
Project Contract. Also, SMART is working to obtain concurrence with the Federal Transit 
Administration funding partner.  

It is therefore recommended that your board approve the resolution to authorize the 
General Manager to approve Change Order MUP-001 in the amount of $4,557,019 and to 
amend the existing Memorandum of Understanding with the City of San Rafael for the 
Larkspur Extension Project to include the construction of Anderson to Rice Drive Pathway 
and contingent upon approval of the Federal Transit Administration.  

Comments 
Director Phillip acknowledge and thanked General Manager Mansourian and Chief 
Engineer Gamlen for their work on this project.  He clarified that the funding is a joint 
effort from the Transportation Authority of Marin, County of Marin, City of San Rafael as 
well as receiving a grant. He is pleased that this work is not going to extend the timeframe 
to complete. This is a very important element for SMART.  

Director Zane stated SMART is often criticized by the public and bicyclist community for 
not committing to the construction of the Multi-Use Pathway, however it should be noted 
that its very expensive to construct any Multi-Use Pathway along SMART’s Right-of-Way. 
She thanked SMART and all parties involved for the construction of this pathway segment. 

Director Hillmer mentioned the significant of this project, it is a seven-minute bicycle ride 
from the Larkspur Ferry to Downtown San Rafael. You can live/ work in San Francisco and 
San Rafael which now makes an easy commute. Also, this is a very important link to any 
bicycle rider. 

Bjorn Griepenburg (Marin County Bicycle Coalition) state that this stretch of pathway has 
not been a priority or a responsibility for SMART, however in the last couple years this has 

Page 9 of 136



Page 8 of 10 

been community priority project for the residents of Marin. Without the help of the City 
of San Rafael, TAM, County, MTC and community groups the Larkspur Extension project 
would be moving forward without a parallel pathway. He thanked the Mayor Phillips, City 
of San Rafael Council and Staff, and consultants for moving this project to this crucial 
point.  Also, thanked Directors Arnold and Connolly and County of Marin for funding the 
feasibility study. Today, he acknowledges SMART’s staff for continuing to move this 
project forward. Lessons learned from this project or perhaps from the construction of 
Initial Operating Segment is the construction of the rail and pathways need to be built 
parallel. He urged the Board to consider building a parallel pathway for the Windsor 
Extension project. 

MOTION: Director Phillips moved to Approve a Resolution Authorizing the General 
Manager to Execute Change Order MUP-001 to Contract No. CV-DB-16-001 for the 
Construction of Approximately 0.5 miles of Bicycle and Pedestrian Pathway between 
Andersen Drive and Rice Drive for the City of San Rafael and to Amend the Existing 2017 
Memorandum of Understanding between SMART and City of San Rafael for the Larkspur 
Extension Project as presented. Director Mackenzie second. The motion carried 9-0-0. 
(Directors Arnold, Connolly, and Russell absent) 

9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Five (5) Consultant Contract Amendments
Totaling $848,805 as needed for Fiscal Year 2018-19

Chief Financial Officer, Erin McGrath stated that there are several ongoing contracts that 
SMART is requesting authority to extend the terms. Funding for the contract extensions 
are included in the proposed Fiscal Year 2018-19 budget. 

Directors’ Comments 
Director Phillips asked if SMART plans to purchase a truing machine to perform the work 
inhouse. Ms. McGrath responded that SMART is considering purchasing a truing machine 
for the Rail Operation Center, however SMART does not have the capacity at this time 
and the contract will allow for the work to be performed until the machine is purchased.  

MOTION: Director Pahre moved to Authorize the General Manager to Execute Five (5) 
Consultant Contract Amendments Totaling $848,805 as needed for Fiscal Year 2018-19 as 
presented. Director Hillmer second. The motion carried 9-0-0. (Directors Arnold, 
Connolly, and Russell absent)  

10. Approve the Resolutions for the Adoption of Fiscal Year 2017-18 Year-End Financial
Report, Proposed Preliminary Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget and Annual Appropriation Limit
and Investment Policy

Chief Financial Officer Erin McGrath stated that this is your approval for the revised Fiscal 
Year 2017-18 and proposed Fiscal Year 2018-19 budget along with the required 
resolutions including the Appropriation Limits required by California Law. Also, an 

Page 10 of 136



Page 9 of 10 

updated PowerPoint presentation was included for Board reference. Highlights from last 
month’s report included: 
▪ Expenditure Shifts – Shift of $489,490 due to operations projects and purchases

happening after July 1st. This includes a major ballast restoration project and DMU
wheel purchase. None of the shifts change the overall proposed budget amount.

▪ New Expenditures - Construct a pathway in San Rafael as part of the Larkspur
extension project. The total expense in the Capital budget was increased in Fiscal Year
2017-18 by $200,000 and in Fiscal Year 2018-19 by $4,357,019; 17M Agency reserve
will be set aside; there are significant revenues associated with SB 1 in the proposed
budget, should SB 1 be repealed, we will come back to you to discuss the impacts.

▪ Investment Policy and Delegation Authority – This is the same delegation and policy
review that your Board approved as part of the budget last year.

▪ Fiscal Year 2018-19 Appropriation Limits - The Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year
2018-19 is $137,563,577 this limit is adjusted to reflect population growth and
inflation.  Revenues expenses associated with most capital improvements and debt
service are exempt from this limit. We estimate conservatively that $35,824,029 of
our expenditures fall under the Proposition 4 limit, well below the cap.

Comments 
Director Phillips asked for the construction cost to complete the Larkspur Extension 
Project Segment. Ms. McGrath responded the entire project cost not including those 
sections funded by others is approximately $54.5M, which includes $2.5M funds used for 
construction design. He asked for clarification on the Operations Budget Table 4 Sales/Use 
Taxes from $14M to $11M. Ms. McGrath responded that the entire amount of Sales Tax 
is on Table 1, Page 77 of report and the amount allocated to Operations changes 
depending on year-end revenues and expenses. Also asked for clarification of the 
Maintenance-Revenue Vehicle approved ($274,169), actuals ($459,014) and proposed 
($1,026,097) amounts. Ms. McGrath responded that last year budget was based on 
assumptions since SMART has not started passenger service. Next Fiscal Year increase is 
partly for the need to purchase wheels and other non-capitalized spare train parts. 

Duane Bellinger asked why funds are not being allocated for the Corona Station project. 
He suggested that SMART constructs a platform at the Corona Station and to include it in 
the proposed budget. 

MOTION: Director Eddie moved to Adopt a Resolution to approve the Revised Fiscal Year 
2017-18 budget, the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Proposed Budget including annual position 
authorization and the Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2018-19 as presented. Director 
Mackenzie second. The motion carried 9-0-0. (Directors Arnold, Connolly, and Russell 
absent)  

MOTION: Director Eddie moved to Approve a Resolution Ratifying the Annual 
Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2018-19 as presented as presented. Director 
Mackenzie second. The motion carried 9-0-0. (Directors Arnold, Connolly, and Russell 
absent) 

Page 11 of 136



Page 10 of 10 

11. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, June 20, 2018 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood
Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954

12. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned at 2:55 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Leticia Rosas-Mendoza 
Clerk of the Board  

Approved as corrected: 

Page 12 of 136



Page 13 of 136



Page 14 of 136



 Resolution No. 2018-16 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF FUNDING-RELATED AGREEMENTS WITH THE 
SONOMA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  

WHEREAS, the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (SMART) is an eligible project 
sponsor and may receive Measure M 2004 Traffic Relief Act for Sonoma County funding from 
the Sonoma County Transportation Authority (SCTA) for transportation projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Sonoma County Transportation Authority determines SMART project 
eligibility for Measure M 2004 Traffic Relief Act for Sonoma County; and  

WHEREAS, acceptance of Measure M 2004 Traffic Relief Act for Sonoma County funds 
imposes certain standard obligations upon the recipient, including annual reporting letters, 
annual provision of SMART audit documents to SCTA and an annual project progress 
presentation by SMART to the Sonoma County Transportation Authority’s Citizens’ Advisory 
Committee; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interests of the SMART District for the Chair of the 
SMART Board of Directors and the General Manager to have standing authorization to file 
necessary documents and execute necessary funding agreements with the Sonoma County 
Transportation Authority 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE Board of Directors of the SMART District 
hereby designates the Chair of SMART’s Board and SMART’s General Manager be authorized to 
file all necessary documents and execute necessary funding agreements with the Sonoma 
County Transportation Authority.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin 
Area Rail Transit District held on the 18th day of July, 2018, by the following vote:  

Page 15 of 136



 Resolution No. 2018-16 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 

DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_________________________________ 

Debora Fudge, Chair, Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________________ 
Leticia Rosas-Mendoza, Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

Page 16 of 136



Page 17 of 136



Page 18 of 136



Page 19 of 136



Page 20 of 136



Page 21 of 136



Page 22 of 136



Page 23 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 1 of 15 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

This agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of __________, 2018 (“Effective Date”) is by and 
between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (hereinafter “SMART”), and Netwoven, 
Inc. (hereinafter “Consultant”). 

R E C I T A L S 

WHEREAS, Consultant represents that it is duly qualified and experienced in the areas 
of Microsoft SharePoint maintenance support, implementation, and related services; and 

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of SMART, it is necessary and 
desirable to employ the services of Consultant for SharePoint maintenance support, 
implementation, and related services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 
covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

A G R E E M E N T 

Article 1. RECITALS. 

Section 1.01 The above Recitals are true and correct. 

Article 2. List of EXHIBITS. 

Section 2.01 The following exhibits are attached hereto and 
incorporated herein: 

(a) Exhibit A:  Scope of Work & Timeline

(b) Exhibit B:  Fee Schedule

Article 3. REQUEST FOR SERVICES. 

Section 3.01 Initiation Conference.  SMART’s IT Manager, Dan 
Hurlbutt, will initiate all requests for services through an Initiation Conference, which 
may be in person, by telephone, or by email.  During the Initiation Conference, 

Page 24 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 2 of 15 

SMART’s IT Manager and Consultant will establish and agree on a specific task for the 
project. 

Section 3.02 Amount of Work.  SMART does not guarantee a 
minimum or maximum amount of work under this Agreement. 

Article 4. Scope of Services. 

Section 4.01 Scope of Work.  Consultant shall perform services 
within the timeframe outlined in Exhibit A (cumulatively referred to as the “Scope of 
Work”). 

Section 4.02 Cooperation With SMART.  Consultant shall cooperate 
with the SMART’s IT Manager in the performance of all work hereunder.  

Section 4.03 Performance Standard.  Consultant shall perform all 
work hereunder in a manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care 
normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant’s profession.  If SMART 
determines that any of Consultant’s work is not in accordance with such level of 
competency and standard of care, SMART, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to 
do any or all of the following:  (a) require Consultant to meet with SMART to review the 
quality of the work and resolve matters of concern; (b) require Consultant to repeat the 
work at no additional charge until it is satisfactory; (c) terminate this Agreement pursuant 
to the provisions of Article 7; or (d) pursue any and all other remedies at law or in equity. 

Section 4.04 Assigned Personnel.  

(a) Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform work hereunder.  In the
event that at any time SMART, in its sole discretion, desires the removal of any person or
persons assigned by Consultant to perform work hereunder, Consultant shall remove such
person or persons immediately upon receiving written notice from SMART.

(b) Any and all persons identified in this Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the project
manager, project team, or other professional performing work hereunder on behalf of the
Consultant are deemed by SMART to be key personnel whose services were a material
inducement to SMART to enter into this Agreement, and without whose services
SMART would not have entered into this Agreement.  Consultant shall not remove,
replace, substitute, or otherwise change any key personnel without the prior written
consent of SMART.  Key personnel shall be as listed in the applicable Task Order.

(c) In the event that any of Consultant’s personnel assigned to perform services under this
Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, sickness or other factors outside of

Page 25 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 3 of 15 

Consultant’s control, Consultant shall be responsible for timely provision of adequately 
qualified replacements. 

(d) Consultant shall assign the following key personnel for the term of this Agreement:

1) Niraj Tenany, President & CEO

2) Asijit Giri, Principal Engineer,

3) Dhruba Moitra, Principal Engineer.

Article 5. Payment. 

For all services required hereunder, Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the 
following terms:  

Section 5.01 Consultant shall invoice SMART on a monthly basis, 
detailing the tasks performed pursuant to the Scope of Work requested by SMART’s 
Representative, and the hours worked.  SMART shall pay Consultant within 30 days after 
submission of the invoices.  

Section 5.02 Consultant shall be paid in accordance with Exhibit B; 
provided, however, that total payments to Consultant shall not exceed $161,000, without 
the prior written approval of SMART.  Consultant shall submit its invoices in arrears on a 
monthly basis in a form approved by the Chief Financial Officer.  The invoices shall 
show or include: (i) the task(s) performed; (ii) the time in quarter hours devoted to the 
task(s); (iii) the hourly rate or rates of the persons performing the task(s); and (iv) copies 
of receipts for reimbursable materials/expenses, if any.  All reimbursable expenses must 
comply with SMART’s Travel Guidelines and must receive prior approval.  Consultant’s 
reimbursement for materials/expenses shall not include items already included in 
Consultant’s overhead as may be billed as a part of its labor rates set forth in Exhibit B.  
SMART does not reimburse Consultant for travel time. 

Section 5.03 Consultant must submit all invoices on a timely basis, 
but no later than thirty (30) days from the date the services/charges were incurred. 
District shall not accept invoices submitted by Consultant after the end of such thirty (30) 
day period without District pre-approval. Time is of the essence with respect to 
submission of invoices and failure by Consultant to abide by these requirements may 

Page 26 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 4 of 15 

delay or prevent payment of invoices or cause such invoices to be returned to the 
Consultant unpaid. 

Article 6. Term of Agreement.  

Section 6.01 The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect for 
two years with an option to renew at SMART’s discretion for one (1) additional year 
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Article 7 below.   

Article 7. Termination. 

Section 7.01 Termination Without Cause.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Agreement, at any time and without cause, both parties shall have the 
right, at their sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days written 
notice to the other party.  

Section 7.02 Termination for Cause.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Agreement, should Consultant fail to perform any of its obligations 
hereunder, within the time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violate any of 
the terms of this Agreement, SMART may immediately terminate this Agreement by 
giving Consultant written notice of such termination, stating the reason for termination.  

Section 7.03 Delivery of Work Product and Final Payment Upon 
Termination.  In the event of termination by either party, Consultant, within 14 days 
following the date of termination, shall deliver to SMART all materials and work product 
subject to Section 12.08 and shall submit to SMART an invoice showing the services 
performed, hours worked, and copies of receipts for reimbursable expenses up to the date 
of termination. 

Section 7.04 Payment Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this 
Agreement by SMART, Consultant shall be entitled to receive as full payment for all 
services satisfactorily rendered and expenses incurred hereunder, an amount which bears 
the same ratio to the total payment specified in the Agreement as the services 
satisfactorily rendered hereunder by Consultant bear to the total services otherwise 
required to be performed for such total payment; provided, however, that if services are 
to be paid on an hourly or daily basis, then Consultant shall be entitled to receive as full 
payment an amount equal to the number of hours or days actually worked prior to 
termination times the applicable hourly or daily rate; provided further that if SMART 
terminates the Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 7.02, SMART shall deduct from 

Page 27 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 5 of 15 

such amount the amount of damage, if any, sustained by SMART by virtue of the breach 
of the Agreement by Consultant. 

Section 7.05 Authority to Terminate.  The Board of Directors has the 
authority to terminate this Agreement on behalf of SMART.  In addition, SMART’s 
Representative or General Manager, in consultation with SMART Counsel, shall have the 
authority to terminate this Agreement on behalf of SMART. 

Article 8. Indemnification 

Consultant agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to any person or entity, 
including SMART, and to indemnify, hold harmless, and release SMART, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from and against any actions, claims, damages, liabilities, disabilities, or 
expenses, that may be asserted by any person or entity, including Consultant, to the extent caused 
by the Consultant’s negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct in its performance or 
obligations under this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to provide a complete defense for any 
claim or action brought against SMART based upon a claim relating to Consultant’s 
performance or obligations under this Agreement.  Consultant’s obligations under this Section 8 
apply whether or not there is concurrent negligence on SMART’s part, but to the extent required 
by law, excluding liability due to SMART’s conduct.  SMART shall have the right to select its 
legal counsel at Consultant’s expense, subject to Consultant’s approval, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.  This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for Consultant or its 
agents under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

Article 9. Insurance.  

With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain 
and shall require all of its Subconsultants, Consultants, and other agents to maintain, insurance as 
described below.   

Section 9.01 Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Workers’ 
Compensation as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury or disease. 

Section 9.02 General Liability Insurance.  Commercial General 
Liability insurance covering products-completed and ongoing operations, property 

Page 28 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 6 of 15 

damage, bodily injury and personal injury using an occurrence policy form, in an amount 
no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, and $2,000,000 aggregate.   

Section 9.03 Professional Liability Insurance.  Professional liability 
insurance for all activities of Consultant arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement in an amount no less than $2,000,000 combined single limit for each claim. 

Section 9.04 Endorsements.  Prior to commencing work, Consultant 
shall file Certificate(s) of Insurance with SMART evidencing the required coverage and 
endorsement(s) and, upon request, a certified duplicate original of any of those policies.  
Said endorsements and Certificate(s) of Insurance shall stipulate: 

(a) SMART, its officers, and employees shall be named as additional insured on all policies
listed above.

(b) That the policy(ies) is Primary Insurance and the insurance company(ies) providing such
policy(ies) shall be liable thereunder for the full amount of any loss or claim which
Licensee is liable, up to and including the total limit of liability, without right of
contribution from any other insurance effected or which may be affected by the Insureds.

(c) Inclusion of the Insureds as additional insureds shall not in any way affect its rights either
as respects any claim, demand, suit or judgment made, brought or recovered against
Licensee.  Said policy shall protect Consultant and the Insureds in the same manner as
though a separate policy had been issued to each, but nothing in said policy shall operate
to increase the insurance company’s liability as set forth in its policy beyond the amount
or amounts shown or to which the insurance company would have been liable if only one
interest had been named as an insured.

(d) Consultant hereby grants to SMART a waiver of any right to subrogation which any
insurer of said Consultant may acquire against SMART by virtue of the payment of any
loss under such insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be
necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of

Page 29 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 7 of 15 

whether or not SMART has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the 
insurer. 

(e) The insurance policy(ies) shall be written by an insurance company or companies
acceptable to SMART.  Such insurance company shall be authorized to transact business
in the state of California.

SMART reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances. 

Section 9.05 Deductibles and Retentions.  Consultant shall be 
responsible for payment of any deductible or retention on Consultant’s policies without 
right of contribution from SMART.  Deductible and retention provisions shall not contain 
any restrictions as to how or by whom the deductible or retention is paid.  Any deductible 
of retention provision limiting payment to the name insured is not acceptable. 

Section 9.06 Claims Made Coverage.  If any insurance specified 
above is written on a claims-made coverage form, Consultant shall: 

(a) Ensure that the retroactive date is shown on the policy, and such date must be before the
date of this Agreement or beginning of any work under this Agreement;

(b) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years following
project completion, including the requirement of adding all additional insureds; and

(c) If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a retroactive date prior to Agreement effective date, Consultant shall purchase
“extending reporting” coverage for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the
work.

Section 9.07 Documentation.  The following documentation shall be 
submitted to SMART: 

(a) Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all coverages and limits
required above.  Said Certificates shall be submitted prior to the execution of this
Agreement.  Consultant agrees to maintain current Certificates of Insurance evidencing
the above-required coverages and limits on file with SMART for the duration of this
Agreement.

(b) Copies of properly executed endorsements required above for each policy.  Said
endorsement copies shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.

Page 30 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 8 of 15 

Consultant agrees to maintain current endorsements evidencing the above-specified 
requirements on file with SMART for the duration of this Agreement. 

(c) Upon SMART’s written request, Consultant shall provide certified copies of the
insurance policies to SMART.  Said policy copies shall be submitted within thirty (30)
days of SMART’s request.  After the Agreement has been signed, signed Certificates of
Insurance shall be submitted for any renewal or replacement of a policy that already
exists, at least ten (10) days before expiration or other termination of the existing policy.

Section 9.08 Policy Obligations.  Consultant’s indemnity and other 
obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements. 

Section 9.09 Material Breach.  If Consultant, for any reason, fails to 
maintain insurance coverage, which is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same 
shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.  SMART, in its sole option, may 
terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from Consultant resulting from said 
breach.  Alternatively, SMART may purchase such required insurance coverage, and 
without further notice to Consultant, SMART may deduct from sums due to Consultant 
any premium costs advanced by SMART for such insurance.  These remedies shall be in 
addition to any other remedies available to SMART. 

Article 10. Prosecution of Work. 

When work is requested of Consultant by SMART, all due diligence shall be exercised 
and the work accomplished without undue delay, within the performance time specified in the 
Task Order.  Performance of the services hereunder shall be completed within the time required 
herein, provided, however, that if the performance is delayed by earthquake, flood, high water, or 
other Act of God, the time for Consultant’s performance of this Agreement shall be extended by 
a number of days equal to the number of days Consultant has been delayed. 

Article 11. Extra or Changed Work.  

Extra or changed work or other changes to the Agreement may be authorized only by 
written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  Minor changes, which do not 
increase the amount paid under the Agreement, and which do not significantly change the scope 
of work or significantly lengthen time schedules may be executed by the General Manager in a 
form approved by SMART Counsel.  The Board of Directors, General Manager or SMART’s 
Representative must authorize all other extra or changed work.  The parties expressly recognize 
that SMART personnel are without authorization to order extra or changed work or waive 
Agreement requirements.  Failure of Consultant to secure such written authorization for extra or 
changed work shall constitute a waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the Agreement price 
or Agreement time due to such unauthorized work and thereafter Consultant shall be entitled to 

Page 31 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 9 of 15 

no compensation whatsoever for the performance of such work.  Consultant further expressly 
waives any and all right or remedy by way of restitution and quantum meruit for any and all 
extra work performed without such express and prior written authorization of SMART. 

Article 12. Representations of Consultant. 

Section 12.01 Standard of Care.  SMART has relied upon the 
professional ability and training of Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this 
Agreement.  Consultant hereby agrees that all its work will be performed and that its 
operations shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted and applicable 
professional practices and standards as well as the requirements of applicable federal, 
state and local laws, it being understood that acceptance of Consultant’s work by 
SMART shall not operate as a waiver or release.   

Section 12.02 Status of Consultant.  The parties intend that Consultant, 
in performing the services specified herein, shall act as an independent Consultant and 
shall control the work and the manner in which it is performed.  Consultant is not to be 
considered an agent or employee of SMART and is not entitled to participate in any 
pension plan, worker’s compensation plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits SMART 
provides its employees.  In the event SMART exercises its right to terminate this 
Agreement pursuant to Article 7, above, Consultant expressly agrees that it shall have no 
recourse or right of appeal under rules, regulations, ordinances, or laws applicable to 
employees.   

Section 12.03 Taxes.  Consultant agrees to file federal and state tax 
returns and pay all applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall 
be solely liable and responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including but not 
limited to state and federal income and FICA taxes.  Consultant agrees to indemnify and 
hold SMART harmless from any liability which it may incur to the United States or to the 
State of California as a consequence of Consultant’s failure to pay, when due, all such 
taxes and obligations.  In case SMART is audited for compliance regarding any 
withholding or other applicable taxes, Consultant agrees to furnish SMART with proof of 
payment of taxes on these earnings. 

Section 12.04 Records Maintenance.  Consultant shall keep and 
maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records concerning all services 
performed that are compensable under this Agreement and shall make such documents 
and records available to SMART for inspection at any reasonable time.  Consultant shall 

Page 32 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 10 of 15 

maintain such records for a period of four (4) years following completion of work 
hereunder. 

Section 12.05 Conflict of Interest.  Consultant covenants that it 
presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that 
represents a financial conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise conflict 
in any manner or degree with the performance of its services hereunder.  Consultant 
further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement no person having any such 
interests shall be employed.  In addition, if requested to do so by SMART, Consultant 
shall complete and file and shall require any other person doing work under this 
Agreement to complete and file a “Statement of Economic Interest” with SMART 
disclosing Consultant’s or such other person’s financial interests. 

Section 12.06 Nondiscrimination.  Consultant shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to 
nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, 
religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition, pregnancy, disability, sexual 
orientation or other prohibited basis, including without limitation, SMART’s Non-
Discrimination Policy.  All nondiscrimination rules or regulations required by law to be 
included in this Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference 

Section 12.07 Assignment Of Rights.  Consultant assigns to SMART 
all rights throughout the world in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, 
right to ideas, in and to all versions of the plans and specifications, if any, now or later 
prepared by Consultant in connection with this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to take 
such actions as are necessary to protect the rights assigned to SMART in this Agreement, 
and to refrain from taking any action which would impair those rights.  Consultant’s 
responsibilities under this provision include, but are not limited to, placing proper notice 
of copyright on all versions of the plans and specifications as SMART may direct, and 
refraining from disclosing any versions of the plans and specifications to any third party 
without first obtaining written permission of SMART.  Consultant shall not use or permit 
another to use the plans and specifications in connection with this or any other project 
without first obtaining written permission of SMART.  

Section 12.08 Ownership And Disclosure Of Work Product.  All 
reports, original drawings, graphics, plans, studies, and other data or documents 
(“documents”), in whatever form or format, assembled or prepared by Consultant or 
Consultant’s Subconsultants, Consultants, and other agents in connection with this 
Agreement shall be the property of SMART.  SMART shall be entitled to immediate 
possession of such documents upon completion of the work pursuant to this Agreement. 

Page 33 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 11 of 15 

Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall promptly deliver to 
SMART all such documents, which have not already been provided to SMART in such 
form or format, as SMART deems appropriate.  Such documents shall be and will remain 
the property of SMART without restriction or limitation. Consultant may retain copies of 
the above- described documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information 
gathered, discovered, or generated in any way through this Agreement without the 
express written permission of SMART. 

Article 13. Demand for Assurance.  

Each party to this Agreement undertakes the obligation that the other’s expectation of 
receiving due performance will not be impaired.  When reasonable grounds for insecurity arise 
with respect to the performance of either party, the other may in writing demand adequate 
assurance of due performance and until such assurance is received may, if commercially 
reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed return has not been received.  
“Commercially reasonable” includes not only the conduct of a party with respect to performance 
under this Agreement, but also conduct with respect to other agreements with parties to this 
Agreement or others.  After receipt of a justified demand, failure to provide within a reasonable 
time, but not exceeding thirty (30) days, such assurance of due performance as is adequate under 
the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this Agreement.  Acceptance of any 
improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved party’s right to demand 

Page 34 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 12 of 15 

adequate assurance of future performance.  Nothing in this Article 13 limits SMART’s right to 
terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 7. 

Article 14. Assignment and Delegation.  

Neither party hereto shall assign, delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in or duty under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, and no such transfer shall be of 
any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other party shall have so consented. 

Article 15. Method and Place of Giving Notice, Submitting INVOICES and 
Making Payments.  

All notices, invoices, and payments shall be made in writing and shall be given by 
personal delivery, U.S. Mail or email.   Notices, invoices, and payments shall be addressed as 
follows: 

If to SMART:    Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
billing@sonomamarintrain.org 

If to Consultant:   Netwoven, Inc. 
Attn: Niraj Tenany 
4000 Pimlico Drive, Suite 114-103 
Pleasanton, CA 94588 
(925) 931-9390
ntenany@netwoven.com

When a notice, invoice or payment is given by a generally recognized overnight courier 
service, the notice, invoice or payment shall be deemed received on the next business day.  When 
a copy of a notice, invoice or payment is sent by facsimile or email, the notice, invoice or 
payment shall be deemed received upon transmission as long as (1) the original copy of the 
notice, invoice or payment is promptly deposited in the U.S. mail and postmarked on the date of 
the facsimile or email (for a payment, on or before the due date), (2) the sender has a written 
confirmation of the facsimile transmission or email, and (3) the facsimile or email is transmitted 
before 5 p.m. (recipient’s time).  In all other instances, notices, invoices and payments shall be 

Page 35 of 136

mailto:billing@sonomamarintrain.org


NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 13 of 15 

effective upon receipt by the recipient.  Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the 
person to whom notices are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph. 

Article 16. Miscellaneous Provisions.  

Section 16.01 No Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by SMART of any 
breach of any term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of such term or provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term 
or promise contained in this Agreement.  

Section 16.02 Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids 
any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree 
that in the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof 
shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or 
invalidated thereby.  Consultant and SMART acknowledge that they have each 
contributed to the making of this Agreement and that, in the event of a dispute over the 
interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will not be construed 
against one party in favor of the other.  Consultant and SMART acknowledge that they 
have each had an adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and 
preparation of this Agreement. 

Section 16.03 Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or 
approval of one party is required to an act of the other party, such consent or approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

Section 16.04 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights 
in third parties. 

Section 16.05 Applicable Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be 
construed and interpreted according to the substantive law of California, regardless of the 
law of conflicts to the contrary in any jurisdiction.  Any action to enforce the terms of this 

Page 36 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 14 of 15 

Agreement or for the breach thereof shall be brought and tried in Santa Rosa or the forum 
nearest to the city of Santa Rosa, in the County of Sonoma. 

Section 16.06 Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for 
convenience of reference.  They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect 
on its construction or interpretation. 

Section 16.07 Merger.  This writing is intended both as the final 
expression of the Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included 
terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant 
to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856.  No modification of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both 
parties. 

Section 16.08 Time of Essence.  Time is and shall be of the essence of 
this Agreement and every provision hereof. 

      Section 16.09        Acceptance of Electronic Signatures and Counterparts.  
The parties agree that this Contract Agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related 
documents to be entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the 
signature of a party is delivered by scanned image as an attachment to electronic mail.  
Such scanned signature must be treated in all respects as having the same effect as an 
original signature.  Each party further agrees that this Contract may be executed in two or 
more counterparts, all of which constitute one and the same instrument. 

Page 37 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 Page 15 of 15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the Effective Date. 

CONSULTANT: ___________________________ 

By: 
Its : 

Date: 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT (SMART) 

By: ___________________________________ 
Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 

Date: ___________________________________ 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE ON FILE WITH AND 
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE FOR SMART:  

By: ___________________________________ 
Katherine DiPasqua, Administrative Analyst 

Date:  ____________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR SMART: 

By:   ___________________________________ 
District Counsel 

Date: ___________________________________

Page 38 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK & TIMELINE 

1. General Objective

The Scope of Work is divided into two categories; (1) SharePoint Managed Services,
and (2) Optional Implementation Projects.

2. Project Managers

All work will be initiated, coordinated, and approved by IT Manager, Dan Hurlbutt, or
his designee.  Each request for work should be delivered to Consultant in writing.

3. Detailed Scope of Work

A. SharePoint Managed Services Scope:

a) Consultant will perform daily monitoring of server health and usage and provide
SMART with weekly reports.

b) Diagnostic Logging Configuration, Monitoring, and Support

c) Event Throttling Configuration, Monitoring, and Support.
1. Logging events depending on severity with events of the highest severity

being logged both at the Windows Event Log and SharePoint ULS/Trace
logs.  Events of lower severity shall be logged only at the ULS/Trace
logs.

2. Event throttling controls will be category specific that directly map to
SharePoint Server functionalities.  These categories to be reviewed and
approved by SMART’s IT Manager.

d) Health and Usage Data Collection

1. Trace Log Management Best Practices Implemented to ensure disk space
does not fill up too quickly.

2. Timer job configuration to perform monitoring tasks and data collection
monitoring.

e) SharePoint Health Analyzer Configuration, Monitoring, and Support
1. Creation of rules to set up logging of failures.
2. Custom Views will be set-up per SMART’s requirements and will be

reviewed and approved by SMART IT Manager.

f) Report Creation
1. Out of Box reports to be configured and new reports specific to SMART

to be created.
a. These reports may include, but are not limited to, the following:

Page 39 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 EXHIBIT A 

• Administrative Reports such as search reports
• Information Management Policy usage reports
• Health Reports
• Web Analytics reports that include Web Site Traffic

Reports, Search Query Reports, etc.
• Custom Reports (Report Builder).

2. All reports will be reviewed and approved by SMART’s IT Manager.

B. Exchange Online, Data Protection Manager (DPM), and Active Directory
(AD) Managed Services Scopes:

a) Data Protection Manager Monitoring Scope:

• Daily Monitoring of Backup Activities
• Manage Weekly Scheduled Data Protection Activities
• Monitor Daily Schedules and Reports
• Provide Comprehensive information about alerts and job status
• Weekly Review of Backup Disc Space.

b) Active Directory Monitoring Scope:

• Daily Monitoring of Directory Replication
• Troubleshoot DNS Issues
• Weekly monitoring of Active Directory audit logs and alerts
• Performance metrics for Active Directory Server and publish weekly reports

c) Exchange Online Monitoring and Support Scope:

• Daily Performance Metrics of Exchange Server Online
• Daily Monitoring of mail transport and tracking failure report
• Daily spam transaction monitoring
• Shared Mailbox, user mailbox growth monitoring and analysis
• Analysis and proactive troubleshooting based on Mail Protection Report
• Message Tracing
• Support email flow issue and troubleshooting

C. OPTIONAL IMPLEMENTATION PROJECTS:

1) OPTIONAL PROJECT 1 – UPGRADE TO SHAREPOINT 2016

• Currently, SMART is on SharePoint 2010 and would like to upgrade to
SharePoint 2016.

• Consultant to prepare SMART’s current system and data for upgrade and
would be responsible for all migration of data, configurations, testing,
back-ups, customizations, and any other set-up services required to
ensure a smooth transition for SMART.

• Consultant will invoice as a lump sum price for this project.

Page 40 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 

EXHIBIT A 

3) OPTION PROJECT 2 – ACTIVE DIRECTORY (AD) FUNCTIONALITY
UPGRADE TO 2012 R2

• There are (5) AD servers that require the functional level to be raised to
Server 2012 R2

• Consultant to upgrade AD schema and forest functionality to Server 2012
R2

• Perform testing and ensure smooth functionality.
• Consultant will invoice as a lump sum price for this project.

D. ACCEPTANCE OF WORK

All optional project work will be reviewed, tested, and signed off by SMART’s IT 
Manager, Dan Hurlbutt, or his designee.  Upon approval, SMART will issue a written 
letter to the consultant formally accepting completion of the work for the consultant’s 
records.   

All maintenance work will be reviewed and approved by SMART’s IT Manager prior to 
monthly invoice being paid to consultant.

E. SMART PROVISIONS
1. Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit will be responsible for the prioritization

decisions and overall team direction; making final decisions about scope,
approach, risk management, and issue resolution.

2. All Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit sponsors, stakeholders, and other
resources required for all projects will be accessible in a reasonable amount
of time.

3. Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit will provide all required permissions in
order to complete all scopes of work when projects are initiated.

4. Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit will install and provide access to
appropriate hardware and software required for the project team to perform
the tasks outlined in this proposal in a timely manner.

5. Remote access to Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit’s internal network for the
project team will be provided promptly at the beginning of each project.

Page 41 of 136



NETWOVEN, INC. 
AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT NO. OT-PS-18-003 EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B 
FEE SCHEDULE  

DESCRIPTION OF WORK MONTHLY 
COST 

**SharePoint, Exchange Online, Data Protection Manager (DPM), 
and Active Directory (AD) Maintenance Services $4,000.00 

OPTIONAL PROJECTS PROJECT 
COST 

Optional Project 1 – Upgrade to SharePoint 2016 $42,000.00 

Optional Project 2 – Active Directory Functionality Upgrade To 
2012 R2 

$3,000.00 

TOTAL OF ALL OPTIONAL PROJECTS $45,000.00 

**SharePoint, Exchange Online, Data Protection Manager (DPM), and Active Directory (AD) 
managed services will be invoiced on a monthly frequency in arrears** 

The amounts listed above include all labor, supervision, insurance costs, all applicable taxes, and 
any other direct or indirect cost associated with each project and scope of work. 

In the event that emergency or unforeseen out-of-scope work is required which is not listed in the 
Exhibit A above, consultant will be paid on a time and materials basis.  Consultant shall prepare 
a written quote containing labor hours by job classification for the work.  SMART’s IT Manager 
or his designee will be required to provide written approval of the work prior to any work being 
performed.  The following are the agreed upon rates by classification for any time and materials 
work.  All required equipment or materials (if any) to perform the job shall be invoiced to 
SMART at cost. 

CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE 
Offshore Infrastructure Architect / Project Manager $55.00 
Offshore Senior SharePoint Admin $32.00 
Offshore Senior SharePoint Developer $32.00 

Page 42 of 136



Page 43 of 136



Page 44 of 136



Page 45 of 136



Page 46 of 136



Page 47 of 136



Resolution No. 2018-19 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 TO REVISE THE 
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 TO PROVIDE FOR INCREASED EXPENDITURE 
AUTHORITY  

WHEREAS, as part of its approval of the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19, the 
Board duly considered the annual expenditures necessary for the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 
Transit District; and 

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2018, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2018-12 approving the 
Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19; and  

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2018-12 considered the appropriation of funds for Operating 
expenses as part of the Annual Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to amend the Annual Budget to provide increased 
appropriation authority for repairs to damages to SMART property funded by reimbursements 
from others.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget for the 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District attached as Exhibit A to Resolution No. 2018-12 is 
hereby amended to increase expenditure authority by adding the following amounts: 

OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES: 
Services and Supplies  $600,000 
OPERATIONS REVENUES: 
Charges for Services  $600,000 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED except as specifically amended or supplemented by this 
Resolution, Resolution No. 2018-12, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits 
thereto is, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally adopted, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect any 
provision of Resolution No. 2018-12. 

Page 48 of 136



Resolution No. 2018-19 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin Area 
Rail Transit District held on the 18th day of July, by the following vote: 

DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

________________________________ 
Debora Fudge, Chair, Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

ATTEST: 

Leticia Rosas-Mendoza, Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

Page 49 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR SERVICES 

This agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of __________, 2018 (“Effective Date”) is by 
and between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (hereinafter “SMART”), and Alstom 
Transportation Inc. (hereinafter “Contractor”). 

R E C I T A L S 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is a duly qualified contractor, experienced in 
the areas of diesel multiple unit (DMU) collision-damaged repair work, vehicle overhauls, 
rebuilds, and related services; and 

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of SMART, it is necessary and 
desirable to employ the services of Contractor to perform major repair work to collision-
damaged DMU Train 110. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 
covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

A G R E E M E N T 

ARTICLE 1.   RECITALS. 

The above Recitals are true and correct. 

ARTICLE 2.   LIST OF EXHIBITS. 

The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein: 

(a) Exhibit A:  Scope of Work & Timeline

(b) Exhibit B:  Fee Schedule

ARTICLE 3.   REQUEST FOR SERVICES. 

Section 3.01 Initiation Conference.  SMART’s Superintendent of Vehicle 
Maintenance, Husani Longstreet, will initiate all requests for services through an Initiation 
Conference, which may be in person, by telephone, or by email.  During the Initiation 
Conference, the Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance and Contractor will establish and agree 
on a specific task for the project. 

Section 3.02 Amount of Work.  SMART does not guarantee a minimum or 
maximum amount of work under this Agreement. 

Page 50 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 2 

ARTICLE 4.   SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

Section 4.01 Scope of Work.  Contractor shall perform services within the 
timeframe outlined in Exhibit A (cumulatively referred to as the “Scope of Work”). 

Section 4.02 Cooperation With SMART.  Contractor shall cooperate with the 
Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance in the performance of all work hereunder.  

Section 4.03 Performance Standard.  Contractor shall perform all work 
hereunder in a manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care normally 
observed by a person practicing in Contractor’s profession.  If SMART determines that any of 
Contractor’s work is not in accordance with such level of competency and standard of care, 
SMART, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to do any or all of the following:  (a) require 
Contractor to meet with SMART to review the quality of the work and resolve matters of 
concern; (b) require Contractor to repeat the work at no additional charge until it is satisfactory; 
(c) terminate this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Article 7; or (d) pursue any and all
other remedies at law or in equity.

Section 4.04 Assigned Personnel.  

(a) Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform work hereunder.  In the
event that at any time SMART, in its sole discretion, desires the removal of any person or
persons assigned by Contractor to perform work hereunder, Contractor shall remove such
person or persons immediately upon receiving written notice from SMART.

(b) Any and all persons identified in this Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the project
manager, project team, or other professional performing work hereunder on behalf of the
Contractor are deemed by SMART to be key personnel whose services were a material
inducement to SMART to enter into this Agreement, and without whose services
SMART would not have entered into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not remove,
replace, substitute, or otherwise change any key personnel without the prior written
consent of SMART.  Key personnel shall be as listed in the applicable Task Order.

(c) In the event that any of Contractor’s personnel assigned to perform services under this
Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, sickness or other factors outside of
Contractor’s control, Contractor shall be responsible for timely provision of adequately
qualified replacements.

(d) Contractor shall assign the following key personnel for the term of this Agreement:

Barry Fong, Administrative Manager

Shawn Gavne, Project Manager

Page 51 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 3 

ARTICLE 5.   PAYMENT. 

For all services required hereunder, Contractor shall be paid in accordance with the 
following terms:  

Section 5.01 Contractor shall invoice SMART on a monthly basis, detailing the 
tasks performed pursuant to the Scope of Work requested by the SMART Superintendent of 
Vehicle Maintenance, and the hours worked.  SMART shall pay Contractor within 30 days after 
submission of the invoices.  

Section 5.02 Contractor shall be paid, as full compensation for the satisfactory 
completion of the work described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) on a Task basis in 
accordance with the budget established in Exhibit B, provided, however, that Contractor agrees 
to perform all services described in the Scope of Work for the negotiated amount of $300,000, 
regardless of whether it takes Contractor more time to complete or costs are more than 
anticipated.  The not-to-exceed (NTE) amount of $300,000 for this Agreement includes labor, 
supervision, applicable surcharges such as taxes, insurance and fringe benefits as well as indirect 
costs, overhead and profit allowance, equipment, materials and supplies; in no case shall 
Contractor be reimbursed for an amount in excess of the NTE amount without a formal written 
amendment to this Agreement.  The hourly rates included herein are for SMART’s evaluation, 
review and auditing purposes only.  Contractor shall submit its invoices in arrears on a monthly 
basis in a form approved by the Chief Financial Officer.  The invoices shall show or include: (i) 
the task(s) performed; (ii) the time in hours devoted to the task(s); and (iii) the hourly rate or 
rates of the persons performing the task(s).  SMART does not reimburse Contractor for travel 
time. 

Section 5.03 Contractor must submit all invoices on a timely basis, but no later 
than thirty (30) days from the date the services/charges were incurred. District shall not accept 
invoices submitted by Contractor after the end of such thirty (30) day period without District pre-
approval. Time is of the essence with respect to submission of invoices and failure by Contractor 
to abide by these requirements may delay or prevent payment of invoices or cause such invoices 
to be returned to the Contractor unpaid. 

ARTICLE 6.   TERM OF AGREEMENT.  

Section 6.01 The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect until December 
31, 2019 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Article 7 below.  

Page 52 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 4 

ARTICLE 7.   TERMINATION. 

Section 7.01 Termination Without Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision 
of this Agreement, at any time and without cause, both parties shall have the right, at their sole 
discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days written notice to the other party.  

Section 7.02 Termination for Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this Agreement, should Contractor fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the 
time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violate any of the terms of this Agreement, 
SMART may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written notice of such 
termination, stating the reason for termination.  

Section 7.03 Delivery of Work Product and Final Payment Upon Termination.  
In the event of termination by either party, Contractor, within 14 days following the date of 
termination, shall deliver to SMART all materials and work product subject to Section 12.08 and 
shall submit to SMART an invoice showing the services performed, hours worked, and copies of 
receipts for reimbursable expenses up to the date of termination. 

Section 7.04 Payment Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement 
by SMART, Contractor shall be entitled to receive as full payment for all services satisfactorily 
rendered and expenses incurred hereunder, an amount which bears the same ratio to the total 
payment specified in the Agreement as the services satisfactorily rendered hereunder by 
Contractor bear to the total services otherwise required to be performed for such total payment; 
provided, however, that if services are to be paid on an hourly or daily basis, then Contractor 
shall be entitled to receive as full payment an amount equal to the number of hours or days 
actually worked prior to termination times the applicable hourly or daily rate; provided further 
that if SMART terminates the Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 7.02, SMART shall 
deduct from such amount the amount of damage, if any, sustained by SMART by virtue of the 
breach of the Agreement by Contractor. 

Section 7.05 Authority to Terminate.  The Board of Directors has the authority 
to terminate this Agreement on behalf of SMART.  In addition, the Superintendent of Vehicle 
Maintenance or General Manager, in consultation with SMART Counsel, shall have the authority 
to terminate this Agreement on behalf of SMART. 

ARTICLE 8.   INDEMNIFICATION 

      Section 8.01 Contractor agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to 
any person or entity, including SMART, and to indemnify, hold harmless, and release SMART, 
its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any actions, claims, damages, liabilities, 
disabilities, or expenses, that may be asserted by any person or entity, including Contractor, to 
the extent caused by the Contractor’s negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct in its 
performance or obligations under this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to provide a complete 
defense for any claim or action brought against SMART based upon a claim relating to 
Contractor’s performance or obligations under this Agreement.  Contractor’s obligations under 

Page 53 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 5 

this Section 8 apply whether or not there is concurrent negligence on SMART’s part, but to the 
extent required by law, excluding liability due to SMART’s conduct.  SMART shall have the 
right to select its legal counsel at Contractor’s expense, subject to Contractor’s approval, which 
shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by 
any limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for Contractor or 
its agents under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other employee benefit 
acts. 

ARTICLE 9.   INSURANCE.  

With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain 
and shall require all of its subcontractors, Contractors, and other agents to maintain, insurance as 
described below.   

Section 9.01 Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Workers’ Compensation as 
required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability insurance 
with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

Section 9.02 General Liability Insurance.  Commercial General Liability 
insurance covering products-completed and ongoing operations, property damage, bodily injury 
and personal injury using an occurrence policy form, in an amount no less than $2,000,000 per 
occurrence.  Said policy shall include a Railroads CG 24 17 endorsement removing the exclusion 
of coverage, if applicable, for bodily injury or property damage arising out of operations within 
50 feet of any railroad property and affecting any railroad bridge, trestle, tracks, roadbeds, 
tunnel, underpass or crossing. 

Section 9.03 Automobile Insurance.  Automobile Liability insurance covering 
bodily injury and property damage in an amount no less than $2,000,000 combined single limit 
for each occurrence.  Said insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned 
vehicles.  Said policy shall also include a CA 20 70 10 13 endorsement removing the exclusion 
of coverage for bodily injury or property damage arising out of operations within 50 feet of any 
railroad bridge, trestle, track, roadbeds, tunnel, underpass or crossing.    

Section 9.04 Inland Marine Insurance.  Inland Marine insurance covering 
SMART’s DMU 110, in an amount no less than $4,000,000 for the entire time the vehicle is in 
Contractor’s care, custody, and control.   

Section 9.05 Professional Liability Insurance.  Professional Liability insurance 
covering liability arising out of any negligent act, error or omission in performance of design or 
engineering services for the Project in an amount no less than $2,000,000 per claim.  If any 
Design Professional Services are furnished by a Subcontractor, the Subcontractor shall be 
required to provide professional liability coverage. 

Page 54 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 6 

Endorsements.  Prior to commencing work, Contractor shall file Certificate(s) of Insurance with 
SMART evidencing the required coverage and endorsement(s) and, upon request, a certified 
duplicate original of any of those policies.  Said endorsements and Certificate(s) of Insurance 
shall stipulate: 

(a) SMART, its officers, and employees shall be named as additional insured on all policies
listed above.

(b) That the policy(ies) is Primary Insurance and the insurance company(ies) providing such
policy(ies) shall be liable thereunder for the full amount of any loss or claim which
Contractor is liable, up to and including the total limit of liability, without right of
contribution from any other insurance effected or which may be effected by the Insureds.

(c) Inclusion of the Insureds as additional insureds shall not in any way affect its rights either
as respects any claim, demand, suit or judgment made, brought or recovered against
Contractor.  Said policy shall protect Contractor and the Insureds in the same manner as
though a separate policy had been issued to each, but nothing in said policy shall operate
to increase the insurance company’s liability as set forth in its policy beyond the amount
or amounts shown or to which the insurance company would have been liable if only one
interest had been named as an insured.

(d) Contractor hereby grants to SMART a waiver of any right to subrogation which any
insurer of said Contractor may acquire against SMART by virtue of the payment of any
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be
necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of
whether or not SMART has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the
insurer.

(e) The insurance policy(ies) shall be written by an insurance company or companies
acceptable to SMART.  Such insurance company shall be authorized to transact business
in the state of California.

SMART reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.

Section 9.05 Deductibles and Retentions.  Contractor shall be responsible for 
payment of any deductible or retention on Contractor’s policies without right of contribution 
from SMART.  Deductible and retention provisions shall not contain any restrictions as to how 
or by whom the deductible or retention is paid.  Any deductible of retention provision limiting 
payment to the name insured is not acceptable. 

Section 9.06 Claims Made Coverage.  If any insurance specified above is 
written on a claims-made coverage form, Contractor shall: 

Page 55 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 7 

(f) Ensure that the retroactive date is shown on the policy, and such date must be before the
date of this Agreement or beginning of any work under this Agreement;

(g) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years following
project completion, including the requirement of adding all additional insureds; and

(h) If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a retroactive date prior to Agreement effective date, Contractor shall purchase
“extending reporting” coverage for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the
work.

Section 9.07 Documentation.  The following documentation shall be submitted 
to SMART: 

(i) Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all coverages and limits
required above.  Said Certificates shall be submitted prior to the execution of this
Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain current Certificates of Insurance evidencing
the above-required coverages and limits on file with SMART for the duration of this
Agreement.

(j) Copies of properly executed endorsements required above for each policy.  Said
endorsement copies shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.
Contractor agrees to maintain current endorsements evidencing the above-specified
requirements on file with SMART for the duration of this Agreement.

(k) Upon SMART’s written request, Contractor shall provide certified copies of the
insurance policies to SMART.  Said policy copies shall be submitted within thirty (30)
days of SMART’s request.  After the Agreement has been signed, signed Certificates of
Insurance shall be submitted for any renewal or replacement of a policy that already
exists, at least ten (10) days before expiration or other termination of the existing policy.

Section 9.08 Policy Obligations.  Contractor’s indemnity and other obligations 
shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements. 

Section 9.09 Material Breach.  If Contractor, for any reason, fails to maintain 
insurance coverage, which is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a 
material breach of this Agreement.  SMART, in its sole option, may terminate this Agreement 
and obtain damages from Contractor resulting from said breach.  Alternatively, SMART may 
purchase such required insurance coverage, and without further notice to Contractor, SMART 
may deduct from sums due to Contractor any premium costs advanced by SMART for such 
insurance.  These remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies available to SMART. 

Page 56 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 8 

ARTICLE 10.  PROSECUTION OF WORK. 

    Section 10.01 When work is requested of Contractor by SMART, all due 
diligence shall be exercised and the work accomplished without undue delay, within the 
performance time specified in the Task Order.  Performance of the services hereunder shall be 
completed within the time required herein, provided, however, that if the performance is delayed 
by earthquake, flood, high water, or other Act of God, the time for Contractor’s performance of 
this Agreement shall be extended by a number of days equal to the number of days Contractor 
has been delayed. 

ARTICLE 11.  EXTRA OR CHANGED WORK.  

    Section 11.01 Extra or changed work or other changes to the Agreement may be 
authorized only by written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  Minor 
changes, which do not increase the amount paid under the Agreement, and which do not 
significantly change the scope of work or significantly lengthen time schedules may be executed 
by the General Manager in a form approved by SMART Counsel.  The Board of Directors, 
General Manager or Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance must authorize all other extra or 
changed work.  The parties expressly recognize that SMART personnel are without authorization 
to order extra or changed work or waive Agreement requirements.  Failure of Contractor to 
secure such written authorization for extra or changed work shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the Agreement price or Agreement time due to such unauthorized work 
and thereafter Contractor shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever for the performance of 
such work.  Contractor further expressly waives any and all right or remedy by way of restitution 
and quantum meruit for any and all extra work performed without such express and prior written 
authorization of SMART. 

ARTICLE 12.  REPRESENTATIONS OF CONTRACTOR. 

Section 12.01 Standard of Care.  SMART has relied upon the professional ability 
and training of Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor 
hereby agrees that all its work will be performed and that its operations shall be conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted and applicable professional practices and standards as well 
as the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being understood that 
acceptance of Contractor’s work by SMART shall not operate as a waiver or release.   

Section 12.02 Status of Contractor.  The parties intend that Contractor, in 
performing the services specified herein, shall act as an independent Contractor and shall control 
the work and the manner in which it is performed.  Contractor is not to be considered an agent or 
employee of SMART and is not entitled to participate in any pension plan, worker’s 
compensation plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits SMART provides its employees.  In the 
event SMART exercises its right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 7, above, 
Contractor expressly agrees that it shall have no recourse or right of appeal under rules, 
regulations, ordinances, or laws applicable to employees.   

Page 57 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 9 

Section 12.03 Taxes.  Contractor agrees to file federal and state tax returns and 
pay all applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable 
and responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including but not limited to state and 
federal income and FICA taxes.  Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold SMART harmless 
from any liability which it may incur to the United States or to the State of California as a 
consequence of Contractor’s failure to pay, when due, all such taxes and obligations.  In case 
SMART is audited for compliance regarding any withholding or other applicable taxes, 
Contractor agrees to furnish SMART with proof of payment of taxes on these earnings. 

Section 12.04 Records Maintenance.  Contractor shall keep and maintain full and 
complete documentation and accounting records concerning all services performed that are 
compensable under this Agreement and shall make such documents and records available to 
SMART for inspection at any reasonable time.  Contractor shall maintain such records for a 
period of four (4) years following completion of work hereunder. 

Section 12.05 Conflict of Interest.  Contractor covenants that it presently has no 
interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial 
conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with 
the performance of its services hereunder.  Contractor further covenants that in the performance 
of this Agreement no person having any such interests shall be employed.  In addition, if 
requested to do so by SMART, Contractor shall complete and file and shall require any other 
person doing work under this Agreement to complete and file a “Statement of Economic 
Interest” with SMART disclosing Contractor’s or such other person’s financial interests. 

Section 12.06 Nondiscrimination.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in 
employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, 
medical condition, pregnancy, disability, sexual orientation or other prohibited basis, including 
without limitation, SMART’s Non-Discrimination Policy.  All nondiscrimination rules or 
regulations required by law to be included in this Agreement are incorporated herein by this 
reference 

Section 12.07 Assignment Of Rights.  Contractor assigns to SMART all rights 
throughout the world in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, right to ideas, in 
and to all versions of the plans and specifications, if any, now or later prepared by Contractor in 
connection with this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to take such actions as are necessary to 
protect the rights assigned to SMART in this Agreement, and to refrain from taking any action 
which would impair those rights.  Contractor’s responsibilities under this provision include, but 
are not limited to, placing proper notice of copyright on all versions of the plans and 
specifications as SMART may direct, and refraining from disclosing any versions of the plans 
and specifications to any third party without first obtaining written permission of SMART.  
Contractor shall not use or permit another to use the plans and specifications in connection with 
this or any other project without first obtaining written permission of SMART.  

Page 58 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 10 

Section 12.08 Ownership And Disclosure Of Work Product.  All reports, original 
drawings, graphics, plans, studies, and other data or documents (“documents”), in whatever form 
or format, assembled or prepared by Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors, Contractors, and 
other agents in connection with this Agreement shall be the property of SMART.  SMART shall 
be entitled to immediate possession of such documents upon completion of the work pursuant to 
this Agreement.  Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall promptly 
deliver to SMART all such documents, which have not already been provided to SMART in such 
form or format, as SMART deems appropriate.  Such documents shall be and will remain the 
property of SMART without restriction or limitation. Contractor may retain copies of the above- 
described documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information gathered, discovered, 
or generated in any way through this Agreement without the express written permission of 
SMART. 

ARTICLE 13.  DEMAND FOR ASSURANCE.   

      Section 13.01      Each party to this Agreement undertakes the obligation that the 
other’s expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired.  When reasonable 
grounds for insecurity arise with respect to the performance of either party, the other may in 
writing demand adequate assurance of due performance and until such assurance is received 
may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed return has not 
been received.  “Commercially reasonable” includes not only the conduct of a party with respect 
to performance under this Agreement, but also conduct with respect to other agreements with 
parties to this Agreement or others.  After receipt of a justified demand, failure to provide within 
a reasonable time, but not exceeding thirty (30) days, such assurance of due performance as is 
adequate under the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this Agreement.  
Acceptance of any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved 
party’s right to demand adequate assurance of future performance.  Nothing in this Article 13 
limits SMART’s right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 7. 

ARTICLE 14.  ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION.  

Neither party hereto shall assign, delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in or duty under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, and no such transfer shall be of 
any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other party shall have so consented. 

ARTICLE 15.  METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING 
INVOICES AND MAKING PAYMENTS.   

All notices, invoices, and payments shall be made in writing and shall be given by 
personal delivery, U.S. Mail or email.   Notices, invoices, and payments shall be addressed as 
follows: 

If to SMART:    Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 

Page 59 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 11 

Petaluma, CA 94954 
billing@sonomamarintrain.org 

If to Contractor:   Alstom Transportation Inc. 
Attn: Barry Fong 
210 Pintado Street 
Vallejo, CA 94592 
(347) 277-6621
Barry.fong@alstomgroup.com

When a notice, invoice or payment is given by a generally recognized overnight courier 
service, the notice, invoice or payment shall be deemed received on the next business day.  When 
a copy of a notice, invoice or payment is sent by facsimile or email, the notice, invoice or 
payment shall be deemed received upon transmission as long as (1) the original copy of the 
notice, invoice or payment is promptly deposited in the U.S. mail and postmarked on the date of 
the facsimile or email (for a payment, on or before the due date), (2) the sender has a written 
confirmation of the facsimile transmission or email, and (3) the facsimile or email is transmitted 
before 5 p.m. (recipient’s time).  In all other instances, notices, invoices and payments shall be 
effective upon receipt by the recipient.  Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the 
person to whom notices are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph. 

ARTICLE 16.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.   

Section 16.01 No Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by SMART of any breach of 
any term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term 
or provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise contained in this 
Agreement.  

Section 16.02 Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of 
statute, ordinance, regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any 
provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or 
unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and 
shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.  Contractor and SMART 
acknowledge that they have each contributed to the making of this Agreement and that, in the 
event of a dispute over the interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will 
not be construed against one party in favor of the other.  Contractor and SMART acknowledge 
that they have each had an adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and 
preparation of this Agreement. 

Section 16.03 Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of 
one party is required to an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

Page 60 of 136

mailto:billing@sonomamarintrain.org
mailto:Barry.fong@alstomgroup.com


ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 12 

Section 16.04 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third 
parties. 

Section 16.05 Applicable Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed 
and interpreted according to the substantive law of California, regardless of the law of conflicts 
to the contrary in any jurisdiction.  Venue for any action to enforce the terms of this Agreement 
or for the breach thereof shall be in the Superior Court of the State of California in the County of 
Marin. 

Section 16.06 Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for 
convenience of reference.  They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its 
construction or interpretation. 

Section 16.07 Merger.  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the 
Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and 
exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 
1856.  No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until such modification is 
evidenced by a writing signed by both parties. 

Section 16.08 Acceptance of Electronic Signatures and Counterparts.  The parties 
agree that this Contract, Agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related documents to be 
entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the signature of a party is delivered 
by scanned image as an attachment to electronic mail.  Such scanned signature must be treated in 
all respects as having the same effect as an original signature.  Each party further agrees that this 
Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

                   Section 16.09 Prevailing Wage.  Contractor and each Subcontractor shall pay toall 
workers employed on the Work not less than the prevailing rate of wages as determined in 
accordance with the Labor Code as indicated herein. 

All contractors/vendors doing business with public agencies throughout the State of California 
(including SMART) shall comply with applicable labor compliance requirements including, but 
not limited to prevailing wages, SB 854, Labor Code Sections 1725.5, 1771, 1774, 1775, 1776, 
1777.5, 1813, and 1815.  Public Works Contractor Registration Program, Electronic Certified 
Payroll Records submission to the State Labor Commissioner and other requirements described 
at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Contractors.html. 

Applicable projects are subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the California 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

Section 16.10 Time of Essence.  Time is and shall be of the essence of this 
Agreement and every provision hereof. 

Page 61 of 136

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Contractors.html


ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001 Page 13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date. 

CONTRACTOR: ___________________________ 

By: 
Its : 

Date: 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT (SMART) 

By: ___________________________________ 
Farhad Mansourian, General Manager 

Date: ___________________________________ 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE ON FILE WITH AND 
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE FOR SMART:  

By: ___________________________________ 
Katherine DiPasqua, Sr. Administrative Analyst 

Date:  ____________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR SMART: 

By:   ___________________________________ 
District Counsel 

Date: ___________________________________

Page 62 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001  EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK & TIMELINE 

I. PURPOSE

SMART’s Diesel-Multiple Unit (DMU) 110 requires repairs after its collision on
5/31/2018.  Initial repair assessments made by SMART, Nippon Sharyo, and Alstom
Transportation Inc. identify the visible damage to be primarily focused to the Front
Mask of the DMU and to Nippon Sharyo fabricated brackets throughout the front of
the vehicle.  SMART is contracting with Alstom Transportation Inc. to perform these
major repairs to DMU 110.

II. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

All work to be initiated, coordinated, and authorized in writing by SMART’s
Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance, Husani Longstreet.

III. DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK

A. SMART will arrange, coordinate, and be responsible for all costs associated with
transporting DMU 110 to Alstom Transportation Inc.’s Mare Island Repair
Facility located at:

Alstom Transportation Inc. Mare Island Repair Facility
Attn:  Shawn Gavne
210 Pintado St
Vallejo, CA 94592

B. Upon receiving DMU 110 at Alstom Transportation Inc.’s Mare Island Facility,
the DMU will be thoroughly examined.

1. All exterior sheeting, interior panels, and fixtures will be removed,
evaluated, and cataloged.

2. Alstom Transportation Inc. will assess each part removed and identify any
parts that can be reconditioned and reused.  This list will be provided to
SMART with the report of any latent damage identified in Section 3.

Page 63 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001  EXHIBIT A 

3. Any latent damage that is exposed during this evaluation process will be
documented in a report that will be immediately sent to SMART’s
Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance for review and next step
determination.

4. The initial repair assessment performed by SMART, Nippon Sharyo, and
Alstom Transportation Inc. identified the following bolt on components
that require replacement:

ITEM QUANTITY 
Front End Cab 1 
Pilot 1 
Cab Window – Center 1 
Cab Window – Left 1 
Cab Window – Right 1 
Headlight Glass 1 
Emergency Side Window Gasket 1 
Uncoupling Device – Cab End 1 
Windshield Wipers – Center 1 
Windshield Wipers – Left 1 
480V Receptacle Kit 1 
Ethernet Receptacle 1 
MU Receptacle 1 
Common Receptacle 2 
Ditchlight Seal Beams 11 
Handhold Front Mask 1 
Handhold Cab Side 1 
Sill Steps – Left 1 
Sill Steps – Right 1 
Red Marker Lights 2 
Dual Headlight Assembly 1 
End Hose Assembly w/ Gladhand 1 
MR Hose Assembly w/ Gladhand 1 
Leveling Valve 1 

SMART will provide Alstom Transportation Inc. with the above listed 
parts and Alstom Transportation Inc. will perform the replacement and 
repair labor. 

Page 64 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001  EXHIBIT A 

5. In addition to the parts and labor identified in Section 4, Alstom
Transportation Inc. has identified and will perform the following repair
work:

i. The brackets behind the fiberglass nose are severely damaged and
will be replaced.

ii. The secondary structure has substantial damage with some of the
bent brackets welded to plates, which are also welded to the
structure.  Alstom Transportation Inc. will cut these damaged
brackets from the plate and weld the new brackets on.

iii. As Alstom Transportation Inc. repairs the front end of the DMU,
which consists of mostly bolt-on components identified in Section
4, contractor will replace the electrical connects as required.

6. All latent damage identified in Section 3 that SMART authorizes Alstom
Transportation Inc. to repair in writing will be invoiced separately using a
technician rate of $135 per hour.  If replacement of materials and other
components not listed above are required in regards to the latent damage,
Alstom Transportation Inc. will provide SMART with a written list of all
components needed.  SMART will have the option to provide these
materials and components directly to Alstom Transportation Inc. for the
repairs or authorize Alstom Transportation Inc. to procure the required
parts.  If contractor procures the required parts, they will be invoiced to
SMART at a cost plus 20% rate.  Contractor will be required to provide
receipts as part of the invoice to SMART.

7. Alstom Transportation Inc. shall perform all repair labor per Federal
Railroad Administration (FRA) standard and to original manufacturer
specifications for DMU 110.

8. Once Alstom Transportation Inc. has completed the repair work on DMU
110, contractor will reassemble all panels, create a report of all repair
work, part replacement, and any other action Alstom Transportation Inc.
performed and immediately contact SMART’s Superintendent of Vehicle
Maintenance, Husani Longstreet, that the vehicle is ready for final
inspection.

9. SMART will perform a final on-site inspection of DMU 110 and review
the written report of all work with Alstom Transportation Inc.’s project
manager.

10. Upon successful review, SMART will authorize acceptance of all work in
writing.

Page 65 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001  EXHIBIT A 

11. Alstom Transportation Inc. repair scope does not provide painting and
final finishing work for DMU 110.

12. Alstom Transportation Inc. will be responsible for preparing DMU 110 for
transport in accordance with SMART’s Superintendent of Vehicle
Maintenance’s requirements. SMART will be responsible for arranging,
coordinating, and all costs related to the transportation of DMU 110 from
Alstom Transportation Inc.’s Mare Island Repair Facility back to
SMART’s Rail Operation Center (ROC).

IV. WEEKLY INSPECTIONS

SMART will perform weekly on-site inspections and monitor all progress of the
repair work being performed on DMU 110.

V. WORK TIMELINES

Alstom Transportation Inc. shall complete the repair work described above 12 weeks
from when Alstom Transportation Inc. receives DMU 110 at their Mare Island Repair
Facility.  If additional time is needed due to unforeseen circumstances, Alstom
Transportation Inc. will immediately request approval from SMART’s
Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance for an extension.

VI. WARRANTY

Alstom Transportation Inc. shall provide SMART with a ____ day warranty period
on all labor performed on DMU 110 and a ____ day warranty period on all parts
purchased by Alstom Transportation Inc on behalf of SMART for DMU 110.

VII. ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA

Upon final completion of all repair work listed above, SMART will perform a final
on-site inspection.  Alstom Transportation Inc.’s project manager will walk SMART
staff through all repair work and part replacement work performed on DMU 110.
SMART will review all work to ensure it meets or exceeds all Federal Railroad
Administration (FRA) standards and original manufacturer specifications.  Upon a
successful evaluation, SMART will provide a written letter of acceptance for all
repair work performed and direct Alstom Transportation Inc. to prepare DMU 110 for
transportation back to SMART’s Rail Operation Center.

Page 66 of 136



ALSTOM TRANSPORTATION INC. 
AGREEMENT 
VS-SV-18-001  EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B 
SCHEDULE OF RATES  

DESCRIPTION PAYMENT % COST 

Upon Alstom’s receipt of 
SMART’s Purchase Order 

20% $38,983.00 

Upon Delivery of the Vehicle to 
Alstom’s Mare Island Facility 

30% $58,474.00 

Upon SMART’s final acceptance 
of the completed work in 
Alstom’s facility 

50% $97,456.00 

TOTAL 100% $194,913.00 

*The pricing listed above is limited to the visible scope of work based on the initial
inspections performed at SMART’s Rail Operation Center (ROC).  Any latent and
unforeseen damage that is identified will require authorization and approval by SMART’s
Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance.

**In the event that latent damage is identified and SMART does not have the required 
materials to provide Alstom Transportation Inc., contractor shall procure these at SMART’s 
written authorization and provide them to SMART at a cost plus 20% rate.  Should SMART 
authorize Alstom to perform repairs to the latent damage, the technician rate will be $135 per 
hour. 

Page 67 of 136



Page 68 of 136



Page 69 of 136



Page 70 of 136



Page 71 of 136



12727226.1 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

FUNDING AGREEMENT FOR SONOMA COUNTY TRANSIT ROUTE 56 AND RELATED BUS 
STOP IMPROVEMENTS AT AIRPORT BLVD. STATION  

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of ____, 2018 by and between the 
SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as “SMART” and the 
COUNTY of SONOMA/SONOMA COUNTY TRANSIT, hereinafter referred to as “SCT”. 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, SMART opened its initial operating segment between Santa Rosa and San Rafael 
during the second quarter of 2017 and full build out of the SMART service includes extensions to 
stations in Windsor, Healdsburg and Cloverdale that will be completed at an unknown date in the 
future; and 

WHEREAS, SMART requests that SCT provide, on a contractual basis, fixed-route bus service 
that provides service between SMART’s Sonoma County Airport Station and future SMART 
stations in Windsor, Healdsburg and Cloverdale.  The service, funded by SMART, will operate as 
SCT Route 56 in accordance with Exhibit 1; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed service will begin with commencement of SMART’s full passenger rail 
service schedule on August 25, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, to facilitate safe, efficient and convenient bus passenger access to the SMART 
Sonoma County Airport Blvd. Station, SMART will design and construct a two-bus turnout for use 
by Sonoma County Transit and other public transit operators.  SCT agrees to provide funding 
assistance towards this improvement as illustrated in Attachment “C.” 

WHEREAS, on ________, 2018, the SMART Board of Directors authorized execution of an 
agreement between SMART and SCT to operate Route 56 as defined in Exhibit 1 and to provide 
funding to support its operation.    

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions set forth below, the parties 
agree to the following: 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES:

SCT agrees to provide public bus service between the SMART Sonoma County Airport Blvd. 
Station, and the Windsor, Healdsburg and Cloverdale stations as described in Exhibit 1. This 
service shall hereinafter be referred to as “SCT Route 56” and operated as part of the Sonoma 
County Transit system as “Route 56.”  It is understood that SCT will be providing services using 
Americans with Disabilities Act-compliant vehicles equipped with Clipper® regional fare collection 
equipment and that the cost of the SCT Route 56 scheduled service will be reimbursed by 
SMART. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and Exhibit 
1, the terms of this Agreement will prevail. 

SMART agrees to design and construct a fully developed, ADA accessible, two-bus turnout 
located immediately in front of its Sonoma County Airport Station/Park & Ride for use by Sonoma 
County Transit as shown on Attachment “B.”  SCT agrees provide up to $115,200 to fund this 
SMART coordinated improvement. 

Page 72 of 136



12727226.1 

2. FEES:

SMART agrees to reimburse SCT on an in-service hour basis as it relates to the operation of SCT 
Route 56.  Annual In-Service Hours and Hourly rates are defined in Exhibit 1.  The annual 
estimated cost for SCT Route 56 is $196,435 for FY 17/18, $185,028 for FY 18/19 and $192,109 
for FY 19/20.   

Upon execution of this agreement and SMART’s completion of the construction of a new two-bus 
turnout immediately in front of its Sonoma County Airport Station/Park & Ride, SMART will invoice 
SCT for an amount not to exceed $115,200 for the improvements detailed in Attachment “C.” 

3. PAYMENT:

SCT will submit an invoice, on a bi-monthly basis, detailing the level of service provided and 
associated costs as established in Exhibit 1.  The fees for services under this Agreement shall be 
due within thirty (30) calendar days after SMART’s receipt of an invoice for services rendered.   

4. CONTRACT PERFORMANCE TIME:

Billing for Route 56 will begin service on August 25, 2017 and terminate at a future date to be 
determined. 

5. TERM:

The term of this Agreement shall commence as of the date first written above (“Effective Date”) 
and shall terminate on June 30, 2020, (“Expiration Date”), unless earlier terminated pursuant to 
Section 12 below, or modified by agreement of the parties.   

6. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION:

SMART shall be named as an additional insured relative to the operation of the SCT Route 56 on 
all applicable SCT liability policies that may be in effect during the term of the Agreement.   

SCT agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend SMART, its directors, officers, agents and 
employees against any action, claim or liability, including, but not limited to, litigation costs and 
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising from any and all claims or losses to anyone who may be injured 
or damaged by reason of SCT's willful misconduct or negligent performance under this 
Agreement.  SCT shall not be obligated hereunder to indemnify SMART with respect to the 
negligence or willful misconduct of SMART. 

SMART agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend SCT, its directors, officers, agents and 
employees against any action, claim or liability, including, but not limited to, litigation costs and 
reasonable attorneys’ fees from any and all claims or losses to anyone who may be incurred or 
damaged by reason of SMART’s willful misconduct or negligent performance under this 
Agreement.  SMART shall not be obligated hereunder to indemnify SCT with respect to the 
negligence or willful misconduct of SCT. 

7. FARES:

Fare payment for passengers transferring between SCT Route 56 and the SMART rail system 
will be by means of Clipper card payment.  For passengers transferring between the SCT Route 
56 and SMART rail system, the SCT Route 56 fare would be included in the payment of the 
SMART rail journey, and no additional payment will be necessary. 

Page 73 of 136



12727226.1 

Bus passengers travelling only on the SCT Route 56 and not boarding or disembarking from the 
SMART rail system, or passengers not utilizing Clipper as the fare media for both the rail and bus 
portions of their journey, will be charged the regular SCT fare for their SCT Route 56 trip.    In this 
case, SCT will retain the local fare for this bus service.  In all cases, patrons of the SCT Route 56 
service will be counted as SCT’s riders for reporting requirements.  SCT Agrees to report ridership 
and fares collected on the Route 56 to SMART. 

8. ASSIGNMENT:

The respective rights, responsibilities and duties of each party under this Agreement may not be 
transferred or assigned without the express prior written consent of the other party. 

9. BOOKS OF RECORD AND AUDIT RIGHTS.

SCT shall maintain on a current basis complete books and records relating to this Agreement.  
SCT will permit SMART to audit books, accounts or records relating to this Agreement during 
regular business hours upon request.  If SMART objects to any amount on an invoice or seeks to 
audit that period of activity, SMART shall set forth, in writing, its objection or its request for an 
audit with sufficient specificity for the District to meaningfully respond. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:

SCT shall render the services under this Agreement to SMART as an independent contractor and 
not as an employee or agent.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create 
an employment relationship between SMART and SCT or between SMART’s and the SCT’s 
employees.  SCT shall exercise its own judgment as to the persons it retains to provide the 
services and shall have the fullest discretion as to the methods and means of operation, subject 
to SMART’s authority to determine the scope of service to be provided. 

11. TERMINATION:

A. If SCT fails to provide the services required under this Agreement or otherwise
fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement, or violates any ordinance,
regulation or other law which applies to its performance herein, SMART may
terminate this Agreement by giving five (5) calendar days written notice to SCT.

B. SCT shall be excused for failure to perform services herein if such services are
prevented by acts of God, strikes, labor disputes or other forces over which SCT
has no control.

C. Either party hereto may terminate this Agreement for any reason by giving ninety
(90) calendar days written notice to the other.  Notice of termination shall be by
written notice and be sent by registered mail.

D. In the event of termination not the fault of SCT, SCT shall be paid for services
performed to the date of termination in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

12. AMENDMENT:

This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written agreement of both parties. 

13. JURISDICTION AND VENUE:

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the 
parties hereto agree that venue shall be in Sonoma County, California. Page 74 of 136



12727226.1 

14. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS:

SCT shall comply with any and all applicable federal, state and local laws affecting the services 
covered by this Agreement. 

15. SCT  WARRANTIES

SCT makes no warranties, representations or agreements, either express or implied, beyond such 
as are explicitly stated in this Agreement. 

16. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

SCT and SMART agree to attempt in good faith to resolve all disputes informally.  If agreed to by 
both parties, alternate methods of dispute resolution, such as mediation, may be utilized.  Unless 
otherwise directed by SCT, SMART shall continue performance under this Agreement while 
matters in dispute are being resolved. 

17. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Based on its ability to provide, within Federal Transit Administration Charter Service regulations, 
SCT will make available, upon SMART’s request, back-up buses in times of emergency for 
evacuation or bus-bridge purposes.  Additional services provided will be billed at the applicable 
hourly rate defined in Exhibit 1. 

18. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

This Agreement is not for the benefit of any person or entity other than the parties. 

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION

This Agreement, including any attachments, constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof and may not be amended except by a written amendment 
executed by authorized representatives of both parties.   

20. NOTICES:

This Agreement shall be managed and administered on SMART’s behalf by the contact as set 
forth below.  All invoices shall be submitted and approved by SMART and all notices shall be 
given to SMART at the following location: 

Joanne Parker, Programming and Grants Manager 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District  
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

Notices shall be given to SCT at the following address: 

Bryan Albee, Transit Systems Manager 
Sonoma County Transit 
355 W. Robles Ave. 
Santa Rosa, CA  95407 

Page 75 of 136



12727226.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunto have executed this Agreement on the date first 
above written. 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY TRANSIT 

By: By: 
General Manager Chair, Board of Supervisors 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: By: 
ATTORNEY FOR SMART ATTORNEY FOR SCT 

Page 76 of 136



12727226.1 

EXHIBIT 1 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION FOR SCT OPERATION OF BUS SERVICE BETWEEN THE SMART 
SONOMA COUNTY AIRPORT BLVD. STATION, WINDSOR DEPOT, HEALDSBURG DEPOT 
AND CLOVERDALE DEPOT 

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (SMART) requests that Sonoma County Transit (SCT) 
provide fixed-route transit service that connects SMART’s Sonoma County Airport station with 
depots in Windsor, Healdsburg and Cloverdale.  The service will be operated as Sonoma County 
Transit Route 56.  The level of service is illustrated in Attachment “A.”  

Service Description/Design 

This bus service will operate between SMART’s Sonoma County Airport Station, the Windsor 
Depot, the Healdsburg Depot and the Cloverdale Depot.  The service will operate per the weekday 
schedule included at Attachment “A.”   Approximately 6.7 in-service hours will be operated each 
weekday day.  Route 56 will be coordinated with select SMART train arrivals and departures.   

Like all SCT routes, Route 56 will not operate on the following holidays:  New Year’s Day,  
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.  Route 56 
will also not operate on the following holidays, when SCT operates on its Saturday schedules:  
Martin Luther King Day, Presidents’ Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, New Year’s 
Eve as Route 56 does not operate on Saturdays. 

Service modifications, such as departure time, stop location, or service frequency, can be made 
to this agreement via modifications to this exhibit or Attachment A, subject to mutual agreement 
between SCT and SMART. 

Service Cost 

Operating costs have been estimated using current systemwide hourly rates for Sonoma County 
Transit service These hourly rates include all costs associated with operating SCT Route 56, 
including fuel and consumables.  . The corresponding hourly rate for FY 17/18 is shown below, 
as well as, an estimate of the FY 18/19 rate. 

FY 17/18 FY 18/19  FY 19/20 

Cost per in-Service Hour   $108.00   $111.24   $114.58 

Estimated Service Hours   1,819   1,663   1,677 

Estimated Annual Cost $196,435 $185,028 $192,109 

Cost Estimate 

The cost estimate for FY 17/18 is $196,435.  This covers the Route 56 costs commencing with 
the start of SMART’s scheduled service on August 25, 2017.  From that time until March, 11, 
2018, Saturday and Sunday service was operated.  Due to lack of demand for weekend service, 
Route 56 began operating as weekday only service on March 12, 2018, per the schedule 
contained in Attachment “A.”   

The projected cost for FY 18/19 anticipates a full year of weekday service per the schedule shown 
in Attachment “A.”  The cost per in-service hour will increase 3.0% over the FY 17/18 rate.  

Page 77 of 136



12727226.1 

The projected cost for FY 19/20 anticipates a full year of weekday service per the schedule shown 
in Attachment “A.”  The cost per in-service hour will increase 3.0% over the FY 18/19 rate.  

Annual in-service hour and cost projections are contained in Attachment “B.” 

ATTACHMENT A 

WEEKDAY ROUTE 56 SCHEDULE CONNECTING THE CITY OF CLOVERDALE, CITY OF 
HEALDSBURG, TOWN OF WINDSOR AND SMART AT SONOMA COUNTY AIRPORT BLVD. STATION 
– Schedule Effective March 12, 2018.

Page 78 of 136



12727226.1 

ATTACHMENT B – Three-Year In-Service Hour and Cost Projection 

Page 79 of 136



12727226.1 

ATTACHMENT C – Airport Station Park & Ride Two-Bus Turnout 

Page 80 of 136



12727226.1 

Page 81 of 136



Page 82 of 136



Page 83 of 136



Page 84 of 136



Resolution No. 2018-17 
Sonoma-Marin Area Real Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT APPROVING A CHANGE ORDER TO CONTRACT NO. CV-DB-16-001 RELATED TO 
DOWNTOWN NOVATO STATION CONSTRUCTION 

WHEREAS, the District entered into Contract No. CV-DB-16-001 with Stacy and Witbeck/ 
Herzog, JV for the Larkspur Extension; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Novato requested a third station at Grant Street in Downtown 
Novato in 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the District approved the Downtown Station with the caveat that the City of 
Novato pay for all of the costs associated with the construction of the station (Resolution No. 
2016-07); and 

WHEREAS, due to funding limitations, a portion of the downtown station was constructed 
in 2016 consisting of the concrete platform, ramp and track modifications; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Novato has secured funding to complete the construction of the 
downtown station and is requesting that SMART complete the work; and  

WHEREAS, Contract Change Order No. NOV-001 provides for the design and construction 
of the of remaining work to complete the Novato Downtown Station, including the installation 
of a shelter and station amenities, modifying gauntlet trackwork, modifications to the train 
control system, crossing improvements at Grant Avenue, and power service; and 

WHEREAS, District and City of Novato entered into a funding agreement to compensate 
the District for design and construction associated with the additional station; and 

WHEREAS, Contract No. CV-DB-16-001 was approved through a competitive solicitation 
and procurement process and the work included in this Change Order is consistent with the 
scope of work previously awarded; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), a funding partner for the Larkspur 
Extension Project allows concurrent non-project activities to be included in a federally funded 
project as long as the activities are funded and treated separately from the federally funded 
project; and 

            WHEREAS, this Change Order meets the specifications and requirements of Contract No. 
CV-DB-16-001; and

WHEREAS, Contractor and SMART staff negotiated a final cost of $4,649,758 and a time 
extension of 60 calendar days for this Change Order; and 

Page 85 of 136



Resolution No. 2018-17 
Sonoma-Marin Area Real Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. That Change Order No. NOV-001, a copy of which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”, is hereby approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin Area 
Rail Transit District held on the 18th day of July, 2018, by the following vote: 

DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

________________________________ 
Debora Fudge, Chair, Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

ATTEST: 

Leticia Rosas-Mendoza, Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

Page 86 of 136



Resolution No. 2018-18 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 TO REVISE THE 
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 TO PROVIDE FOR INCREASED EXPENDITURE 
AUTHORITY  

WHEREAS, as part of its approval of the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19, the 
Board duly considered the annual expenditures necessary for the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 
Transit District; and 

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2018, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2018-12 approving the 
Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19; and  

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2018-12 considered the appropriation of funds for Operating 
expenses as part of the Annual Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to amend the Annual Budget to provide increased 
appropriation authority for capital project expenditures.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fiscal Year 2018-19 budget for the 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District attached as Exhibit A to Resolution No. 2018-12 is 
hereby amended to increase expenditure authority by adding the following amounts: 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES:  
Other Charges and Payments $5,200,000 

CAPITAL REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental Revenue   $5,200,000 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED except as specifically amended or supplemented by this 
Resolution, Resolution No. 2018-12, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits 
thereto is, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally adopted, and nothing 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect any 
provision of Resolution No. 2018-12. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin Area 
Rail Transit District held on the 18th day of July 2018, by the following vote: 

Page 87 of 136



Resolution No. 2018-18 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

July 18, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 

DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

________________________________ 
Debora Fudge, Chair, Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

ATTEST: 

Leticia Rosas-Mendoza, Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

Page 88 of 136



Page 89 of 136



\\
m

tc
fs

2.
ad

.m
tc

.c
a.

go
v\

j_
dr

iv
e\

PR
O

JE
CT

\T
ra

ns
it 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Pr

oj
ec

t\
Se

rv
ic

e 
An

al
ys

is
\T

PI
\R

ou
nd

 4
 - 

N
or

th
 C

ou
nt

ie
s\

M
ar

in
 - 

N
ov

at
o 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
SM

AR
T 

St
at

io
n\

N
ov

at
o 

St
at

io
n 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Ph
as

es
 1

-3
.x

ls
x

7/
9/

20
18

N
ov

at
o 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
SM

AR
T 

St
at

io
n 

Fu
nd

in
g 

-- 
D

RA
FT

 --
 F

or
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
O

nl
y

Am
ou

nt
Fu

nd
er

Fu
nd

 S
ou

rc
e

Ph
as

e 
1

Ra
ils

 a
nd

 P
la

tf
or

m
2,

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

Ci
ty

 o
f N

ov
at

o
20

-y
ea

r l
oa

n 
fr

om
 H

am
ilt

on
 tr

us
t

Ph
as

e 
2

Si
gn

al
in

g,
 e

le
ct

ric
al

 sy
st

em
, &

 
am

en
iti

es
 fo

r f
un

ct
io

na
l s

ta
tio

n
5,

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 1,

44
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

M
TC

/T
AM

O
BA

G 
2 

Co
un

ty
 P

ro
gr

am
1,

49
0,

90
0

$ 
   

   
 

Ci
ty

 o
f N

ov
at

o
Ga

s t
ax

 [l
oc

al
 m

at
ch

 fo
r O

BA
G 

2]
/E

qu
ip

. R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t F
un

d/
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

 M
ai

nt
. F

un
d

16
1,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ci

ty
 o

f N
ov

at
o/

TA
M

TA
M

 M
ea

su
re

 A
/T

AM
 M

ea
su

re
 B

/N
ov

at
o 

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 (f

un
d 

sw
ap

 re
la

te
d)

Su
bt

ot
al

 F
un

de
d

3,
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 

61
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
M

TC
ST

P/
CM

AQ
 (e

xc
ha

ng
e 

ne
ed

ed
), 

or
 R

M
3 

N
or

th
 B

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ac

ce
ss

 (p
ro

je
ct

 2
6)

50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
M

TC
TP

I s
hi

ft
ed

 fr
om

 P
ha

se
 3

, e
xc

ha
ng

e 
ne

ed
ed

 
48

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

TA
M

LP
P 

Co
un

ty
 sh

ar
e

50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
N

ov
at

o
Ci

ty
 g

en
er

al
 fu

nd
Re

m
ai

ni
ng

 N
ee

d
-

$
 

Ph
as

e 
3

Pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

61
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
Lo

ca
l/f

ut
ur

e 
ot

he
r

Re
pl

ac
e 

TP
I I

nv
es

tm
en

t f
un

di
ng

 sh
ift

ed
 to

 P
ha

se
 2

11
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
Lo

ca
l m

at
ch

TB
D

Co
m

m
itt

ed
 F

un
di

ng

Ad
di

tio
na

l N
ee

d 
-- 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Po
ss

ib
ili

tie
s

Page 90 of 136



Change Order NOV-001 
Contract No.:  CV-DB-16-001 
Contract Title: Larkspur Extension Project

Concurred By: 

___________________________________________ 

Concurred By: 

______________________________________________ 
Project Engineer                                             Date 

Ahmed Thleiji   

District Chief Engineer                                     Date 

Bill Gamlen 

The undersigned agrees to the terms and conditions described herein. 

Contractor Acceptance Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 

Title:  Project Representative  Title: General Manager 

(Authorized Signature for Contractor)            Date 

Dan Elshire 

(Authorized Signature for Owner)      Date 

Farhad Mansourian 

Page 1 of 2 

 Issued to: Stacy and Witbeck/Herzog, A Joint Venture 
2800 Harbor Bay Parkway 
Alameda, California 94502 
Phone: (510) 393-2520 

Change Notice Reference: 
003 

CO Title:  Novato Downtown Station Phase 2 Work 
Funding Source: City of Novato 

The Contract Price due to this CO will change by: $4,649,758 
The Contract Performance Time due to the CO will be change by:  60  calendar days 

EXCEPT AS MODIFIED BY THIS CHANGE ORDER, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT, AS 
PREVIOUSLY MODIFIED, REMAIN UNCHANGED AND IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. THE PARTIES AGREE 
THAT THIS CHANGE ORDER IS A FINAL AND EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENT OF THE CONTRACT TIME AND 
CONTRACT AMOUNT AND CONSTITUTES A MUTUAL ACCORD AND SATISFACTION OF ALL CLAIMS, 
CURRENT OR FUTURE, OF WHATEVER NATURE CAUSED BY OR ARISING OUT OF THE FACTS AND 
CIRCUMSTANCES SURROUNDING THIS CHANGE ORDER INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DIRECT, 
INDIRECT AND CONSEQUENTIAL COSTS; ADDITIONAL TIME FOR PERFORMANCE; AND THE IMPACT OF 
THE CHANGE SPECIFIED IN THIS CHANGE ORDER, ALONE OR TAKEN WITH OTHER CHANGES, ON THE 
UNCHANGED WORK. 

Description of change: 

This change orders directs the contractor to complete the Novato Downtown Station.  This work 
includes purchasing and installing platform amenities and systems & signaling train control 
modifications as detailed and referenced in CN 003 and the contractor’s final cost proposal.  

Page 91 of 136



Change Order NOV-001 
Contract No.:  CV-DB-16-001 
Contract Title: Larkspur Extension Project

Initials: 
Project Engineer Contractor Chief Engineer 

Page 2 of 2 

The contractor shall furnish and install the platform amenities including, but not limited to: two (2) 
shelters, one information Kiosk, railings, platform lighting (including street access lighting), benches, 
trash receptacles, and provisions for fare collection equipment.  

The preparations for the fare collection equipment shall include the installation of three (3) Card 
Reader poles (poles to be provided by SMART), and preparations for one (1) Card Vending Machine 
(CVM), power provisions, communications systems, and the integration with existing SMART 
communication system. The Card Readers and CVM will be furnished by others.  

The contractor shall also make the necessary modifications to the train control system to integrate 
the control of the gauntlet tracks to shift passenger trains from the mainline track to the station 
track.  This work includes, but it is not limited to: furnishing and installing a Central Instruments 
Location (CIL) bungalow, platform Communications Cabinet, Pedestrian swing gates, (2) Gauntlet 
Turnout Switch machines, all truck circuit connections, and all station networking and communication 
equipment and cabling. All installations shall include conduits, wiring, pullboxes, testing, and full 
functionality of the system and signaling equipment.  

The contractor shall furnish and install the Novato Station Networking and Communication systems 
that is integrated into the overall SMART communications system.  This work includes, but is not 
limited to; Network hardware (switches, power supplies, patch cables, etc.); Data Cable installation, 
termination, and testing for Fare Collection; Rail network hardware for cabinet; Fiber installation; 
Network hardware at the Rail Operations Center (ROC); Emergency call box and installation; Security 
cameras and installation. All installations shall include conduits, wiring, pullboxes, testing, and full 
functionality of the Station Networking and Communication.  

Please reference Attachment A and the contractor’s proposal attached.  

Compensation for this Change Order will be made by adding the following Pay Item(s): 

Pay Item 
No. 

Funding 
Source 

Description Unit Qty. Unit Price Item Total 

NOV 001 1003Q.C Novato station Phase 2 
Work 

LS 1  $4,649,758  $4,649,758 

Page 92 of 136



Page 24 of 151

Page 93 of 136



Page 25 of 151

Page 94 of 136



Page 26 of 151

Page 95 of 136



Page 27 of 151

Page 96 of 136



Page 97 of 136



Page 98 of 136



Page 99 of 136



Page 100 of 136



Page 101 of 136



Page 102 of 136



Page 103 of 136



Page 104 of 136



Page 105 of 136



Page 106 of 136



Page 107 of 136



Page 108 of 136



Page 109 of 136



Page 110 of 136



Page 111 of 136



Page 112 of 136



Page 113 of 136



Page 114 of 136



Page 115 of 136



Page 116 of 136



Page 117 of 136



Page 118 of 136



Page 119 of 136



Page 120 of 136



Page 121 of 136



Page 122 of 136



Page 123 of 136



Page 124 of 136



Page 125 of 136



Page 126 of 136



Page 127 of 136



Page 128 of 136



Page 129 of 136



Page 130 of 136



Page 131 of 136



Page 132 of 136



Page 133 of 136



Page 134 of 136



Page 135 of 136



Page 136 of 136


	01_Agenda_07.18.2018
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

	02_Minutes_06.06.2018_Final
	06a_(SCTA)Grant Staff Report
	06a_AgreementAuthority_Reso No 2018-16_SCTADRAFT
	06a_LTr to SCTA_MeasureMMUP_ReallocationRequest_06.11.2018
	07_ SMART Anniversary Staff Report
	07_SMART Anniversary Schedule
	08_(Staff Report) Netwoven Agreement (OT-PS-18-003)
	08_Agreement (Netwoven OT-PS-18-003)
	AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
	Article 1. RECITALS.
	Section 1.01 The above Recitals are true and correct.

	Article 2. List of EXHIBITS.
	Section 2.01 The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein:
	(a) Exhibit A:  Scope of Work & Timeline
	(b) Exhibit B:  Fee Schedule


	Article 3. REQUEST FOR SERVICES.
	Section 3.01 Initiation Conference.  SMART’s IT Manager, Dan Hurlbutt, will initiate all requests for services through an Initiation Conference, which may be in person, by telephone, or by email.  During the Initiation Conference, SMART’s IT Manager a...
	Section 3.02 Amount of Work.  SMART does not guarantee a minimum or maximum amount of work under this Agreement.

	Article 4. Scope of Services.
	Section 4.01 Scope of Work.  Consultant shall perform services within the timeframe outlined in Exhibit A (cumulatively referred to as the “Scope of Work”).
	Section 4.02 Cooperation With SMART.  Consultant shall cooperate with the SMART’s IT Manager in the performance of all work hereunder.
	Section 4.03 Performance Standard.  Consultant shall perform all work hereunder in a manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant’s profession.  If SMART determines that any...
	Section 4.04 Assigned Personnel.
	(a) Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform work hereunder.  In the event that at any time SMART, in its sole discretion, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by Consultant to perform work hereunder, Consultant sha...
	(b) Any and all persons identified in this Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the project manager, project team, or other professional performing work hereunder on behalf of the Consultant are deemed by SMART to be key personnel whose services were a ...
	(c) In the event that any of Consultant’s personnel assigned to perform services under this Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, sickness or other factors outside of Consultant’s control, Consultant shall be responsible for timely provisio...
	(d) Consultant shall assign the following key personnel for the term of this Agreement:
	1) Niraj Tenany, President & CEO
	2) Asijit Giri, Principal Engineer,
	3) Dhruba Moitra, Principal Engineer.


	Article 5. Payment.
	Section 5.01 Consultant shall invoice SMART on a monthly basis, detailing the tasks performed pursuant to the Scope of Work requested by SMART’s Representative, and the hours worked.  SMART shall pay Consultant within 30 days after submission of the i...
	Section 5.02 Consultant shall be paid in accordance with Exhibit B; provided, however, that total payments to Consultant shall not exceed $161,000, without the prior written approval of SMART.  Consultant shall submit its invoices in arrears on a mont...
	Section 5.03 Consultant must submit all invoices on a timely basis, but no later than thirty (30) days from the date the services/charges were incurred. District shall not accept invoices submitted by Consultant after the end of such thirty (30) day p...

	Article 6. Term of Agreement.
	Section 6.01 The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect for two years with an option to renew at SMART’s discretion for one (1) additional year unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Article 7 below.

	Article 7. Termination.
	Section 7.01 Termination Without Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, at any time and without cause, both parties shall have the right, at their sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days written notice to...
	Section 7.02 Termination for Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, should Consultant fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violate any of the terms of...
	Section 7.03 Delivery of Work Product and Final Payment Upon Termination.  In the event of termination by either party, Consultant, within 14 days following the date of termination, shall deliver to SMART all materials and work product subject to Sect...
	Section 7.04 Payment Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement by SMART, Consultant shall be entitled to receive as full payment for all services satisfactorily rendered and expenses incurred hereunder, an amount which bears the same ratio...
	Section 7.05 Authority to Terminate.  The Board of Directors has the authority to terminate this Agreement on behalf of SMART.  In addition, SMART’s Representative or General Manager, in consultation with SMART Counsel, shall have the authority to ter...

	Article 8. Indemnification
	Article 9. Insurance.
	Section 9.01 Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Workers’ Compensation as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
	Section 9.02 General Liability Insurance.  Commercial General Liability insurance covering products-completed and ongoing operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal injury using an occurrence policy form, in an amount no less than $1,000,...
	Section 9.03 Professional Liability Insurance.  Professional liability insurance for all activities of Consultant arising out of or in connection with this Agreement in an amount no less than $2,000,000 combined single limit for each claim.
	Section 9.04 Endorsements.  Prior to commencing work, Consultant shall file Certificate(s) of Insurance with SMART evidencing the required coverage and endorsement(s) and, upon request, a certified duplicate original of any of those policies.  Said en...
	(a) SMART, its officers, and employees shall be named as additional insured on all policies listed above.
	(b) That the policy(ies) is Primary Insurance and the insurance company(ies) providing such policy(ies) shall be liable thereunder for the full amount of any loss or claim which Licensee is liable, up to and including the total limit of liability, wit...
	(c) Inclusion of the Insureds as additional insureds shall not in any way affect its rights either as respects any claim, demand, suit or judgment made, brought or recovered against Licensee.  Said policy shall protect Consultant and the Insureds in t...
	(d) Consultant hereby grants to SMART a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said Consultant may acquire against SMART by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may b...
	(e) The insurance policy(ies) shall be written by an insurance company or companies acceptable to SMART.  Such insurance company shall be authorized to transact business in the state of California.

	Section 9.05 Deductibles and Retentions.  Consultant shall be responsible for payment of any deductible or retention on Consultant’s policies without right of contribution from SMART.  Deductible and retention provisions shall not contain any restrict...
	Section 9.06 Claims Made Coverage.  If any insurance specified above is written on a claims-made coverage form, Consultant shall:
	(a) Ensure that the retroactive date is shown on the policy, and such date must be before the date of this Agreement or beginning of any work under this Agreement;
	(b) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years following project completion, including the requirement of adding all additional insureds; and
	(c) If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to Agreement effective date, Consultant shall purchase “extending reporting” coverage for a minimum of three (3) years af...

	Section 9.07 Documentation.  The following documentation shall be submitted to SMART:
	(a) Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all coverages and limits required above.  Said Certificates shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to maintain current Certificates of Insuranc...
	(b) Copies of properly executed endorsements required above for each policy.  Said endorsement copies shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Consultant agrees to maintain current endorsements evidencing the above-specified requi...
	(c) Upon SMART’s written request, Consultant shall provide certified copies of the insurance policies to SMART.  Said policy copies shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of SMART’s request.  After the Agreement has been signed, signed Certificate...

	Section 9.08 Policy Obligations.  Consultant’s indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements.
	Section 9.09 Material Breach.  If Consultant, for any reason, fails to maintain insurance coverage, which is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.  SMART, in its sole option, may terminate t...

	Article 10. Prosecution of Work.
	Article 11. Extra or Changed Work.
	Article 12. Representations of Consultant.
	Section 12.01 Standard of Care.  SMART has relied upon the professional ability and training of Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Consultant hereby agrees that all its work will be performed and that its operations sha...
	Section 12.02 Status of Consultant.  The parties intend that Consultant, in performing the services specified herein, shall act as an independent Consultant and shall control the work and the manner in which it is performed.  Consultant is not to be c...
	Section 12.03 Taxes.  Consultant agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including but not...
	Section 12.04 Records Maintenance.  Consultant shall keep and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records concerning all services performed that are compensable under this Agreement and shall make such documents and records availab...
	Section 12.05 Conflict of Interest.  Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise conflic...
	Section 12.06 Nondiscrimination.  Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital...
	Section 12.07 Assignment Of Rights.  Consultant assigns to SMART all rights throughout the world in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, right to ideas, in and to all versions of the plans and specifications, if any, now or later ...
	Section 12.08 Ownership And Disclosure Of Work Product.  All reports, original drawings, graphics, plans, studies, and other data or documents (“documents”), in whatever form or format, assembled or prepared by Consultant or Consultant’s Subconsultant...

	Article 13. Demand for Assurance.
	Article 14. Assignment and Delegation.
	Article 15. Method and Place of Giving Notice, Submitting INVOICES and Making Payments.
	Article 16. Miscellaneous Provisions.
	Section 16.01 No Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by SMART of any breach of any term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise con...
	Section 16.02 Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree th...
	Section 16.03 Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is required to an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
	Section 16.04 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties.
	Section 16.05 Applicable Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the substantive law of California, regardless of the law of conflicts to the contrary in any jurisdiction.  Any action to enforce the terms of this...
	Section 16.06 Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference.  They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.
	Section 16.07 Merger.  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Ci...
	Section 16.08 Time of Essence.  Time is and shall be of the essence of this Agreement and every provision hereof.
	Section 16.09        Acceptance of Electronic Signatures and Counterparts.  The parties agree that this Contract Agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related documents to be entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the ...
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

	Exhibit A Scope of Work & TIMELINE
	Exhibit B FEE Schedule

	09_Staff Report - Used Hyrail Rotary Dump Truck and Lowrailer
	10_(Authorization for Repairs Staff Report) - DMU 110
	10_(Reso No. 2018-19) FY18-19 Budget Amendment DMU Repairs
	10_Agreement (Alstom Transportation Inc.)
	AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR SERVICES
	Article 1.   RECITALS.
	The above Recitals are true and correct.

	Article 2.   List of EXHIBITS.
	The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein:
	(a) Exhibit A:  Scope of Work & Timeline
	(b) Exhibit B:  Fee Schedule


	Article 3.   REQUEST FOR SERVICES.
	Section 3.01 Initiation Conference.  SMART’s Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance, Husani Longstreet, will initiate all requests for services through an Initiation Conference, which may be in person, by telephone, or by email.  During the Initiation...
	Section 3.02 Amount of Work.  SMART does not guarantee a minimum or maximum amount of work under this Agreement.

	Article 4.   Scope of Services.
	Section 4.01 Scope of Work.  Contractor shall perform services within the timeframe outlined in Exhibit A (cumulatively referred to as the “Scope of Work”).
	Section 4.02 Cooperation With SMART.  Contractor shall cooperate with the Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance in the performance of all work hereunder.
	Section 4.03 Performance Standard.  Contractor shall perform all work hereunder in a manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care normally observed by a person practicing in Contractor’s profession.  If SMART determines that an...
	Section 4.04 Assigned Personnel.
	(a) Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform work hereunder.  In the event that at any time SMART, in its sole discretion, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by Contractor to perform work hereunder, Contractor sha...
	(b) Any and all persons identified in this Agreement or any exhibit hereto as the project manager, project team, or other professional performing work hereunder on behalf of the Contractor are deemed by SMART to be key personnel whose services were a ...
	(c) In the event that any of Contractor’s personnel assigned to perform services under this Agreement become unavailable due to resignation, sickness or other factors outside of Contractor’s control, Contractor shall be responsible for timely provisio...
	(d) Contractor shall assign the following key personnel for the term of this Agreement:
	Barry Fong, Administrative Manager


	Article 5.   Payment.
	Section 5.01 Contractor shall invoice SMART on a monthly basis, detailing the tasks performed pursuant to the Scope of Work requested by the SMART Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance, and the hours worked.  SMART shall pay Contractor within 30 days...
	Section 5.02 Contractor shall be paid, as full compensation for the satisfactory completion of the work described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) on a Task basis in accordance with the budget established in Exhibit B, provided, however, that Contrac...
	Section 5.03 Contractor must submit all invoices on a timely basis, but no later than thirty (30) days from the date the services/charges were incurred. District shall not accept invoices submitted by Contractor after the end of such thirty (30) day ...

	Article 6.   Term of Agreement.
	Section 6.01 The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect until December 31, 2019 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Article 7 below.

	Article 7.   Termination.
	Section 7.01 Termination Without Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, at any time and without cause, both parties shall have the right, at their sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days written notice t...
	Section 7.02 Termination for Cause.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, should Contractor fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violate any of the terms o...
	Section 7.03 Delivery of Work Product and Final Payment Upon Termination.  In the event of termination by either party, Contractor, within 14 days following the date of termination, shall deliver to SMART all materials and work product subject to Sec...
	Section 7.04 Payment Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement by SMART, Contractor shall be entitled to receive as full payment for all services satisfactorily rendered and expenses incurred hereunder, an amount which bears the same rati...
	Section 7.05 Authority to Terminate.  The Board of Directors has the authority to terminate this Agreement on behalf of SMART.  In addition, the Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance or General Manager, in consultation with SMART Counsel, shall have ...

	Article 8.   indemnification
	Article 9.   Insurance.
	Section 9.01 Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Workers’ Compensation as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
	Section 9.02 General Liability Insurance.  Commercial General Liability insurance covering products-completed and ongoing operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal injury using an occurrence policy form, in an amount no less than $2,000...
	Section 9.03 Automobile Insurance.  Automobile Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in an amount no less than $2,000,000 combined single limit for each occurrence.  Said insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired, and...
	Section 9.04 Inland Marine Insurance.  Inland Marine insurance covering SMART’s DMU 110, in an amount no less than $4,000,000 for the entire time the vehicle is in Contractor’s care, custody, and control.
	Section 9.05 Professional Liability Insurance.  Professional Liability insurance covering liability arising out of any negligent act, error or omission in performance of design or engineering services for the Project in an amount no less than $2,000,...
	Endorsements.  Prior to commencing work, Contractor shall file Certificate(s) of Insurance with SMART evidencing the required coverage and endorsement(s) and, upon request, a certified duplicate original of any of those policies.  Said endorsements an...
	(a) SMART, its officers, and employees shall be named as additional insured on all policies listed above.
	(b) That the policy(ies) is Primary Insurance and the insurance company(ies) providing such policy(ies) shall be liable thereunder for the full amount of any loss or claim which Contractor is liable, up to and including the total limit of liability, w...
	(c) Inclusion of the Insureds as additional insureds shall not in any way affect its rights either as respects any claim, demand, suit or judgment made, brought or recovered against Contractor.  Said policy shall protect Contractor and the Insureds in...
	(d) Contractor hereby grants to SMART a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against SMART by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may b...
	(e) The insurance policy(ies) shall be written by an insurance company or companies acceptable to SMART.  Such insurance company shall be authorized to transact business in the state of California.

	Section 9.05 Deductibles and Retentions.  Contractor shall be responsible for payment of any deductible or retention on Contractor’s policies without right of contribution from SMART.  Deductible and retention provisions shall not contain any restric...
	Section 9.06 Claims Made Coverage.  If any insurance specified above is written on a claims-made coverage form, Contractor shall:
	(f) Ensure that the retroactive date is shown on the policy, and such date must be before the date of this Agreement or beginning of any work under this Agreement;
	(g) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years following project completion, including the requirement of adding all additional insureds; and
	(h) If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to Agreement effective date, Contractor shall purchase “extending reporting” coverage for a minimum of three (3) years af...

	Section 9.07 Documentation.  The following documentation shall be submitted to SMART:
	(i) Properly executed Certificates of Insurance clearly evidencing all coverages and limits required above.  Said Certificates shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain current Certificates of Insuranc...
	(j) Copies of properly executed endorsements required above for each policy.  Said endorsement copies shall be submitted prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain current endorsements evidencing the above-specified requi...
	(k) Upon SMART’s written request, Contractor shall provide certified copies of the insurance policies to SMART.  Said policy copies shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of SMART’s request.  After the Agreement has been signed, signed Certificate...

	Section 9.08 Policy Obligations.  Contractor’s indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements.
	Section 9.09 Material Breach.  If Contractor, for any reason, fails to maintain insurance coverage, which is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.  SMART, in its sole option, may terminate ...

	ARTICLE 10.  Prosecution of Work.
	ARTICLE 11.  Extra or Changed Work.
	ARTICLE 12.  Representations of Contractor.
	Section 12.01 Standard of Care.  SMART has relied upon the professional ability and training of Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor hereby agrees that all its work will be performed and that its operations sh...
	Section 12.02 Status of Contractor.  The parties intend that Contractor, in performing the services specified herein, shall act as an independent Contractor and shall control the work and the manner in which it is performed.  Contractor is not to be ...
	Section 12.03 Taxes.  Contractor agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including but no...
	Section 12.04 Records Maintenance.  Contractor shall keep and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records concerning all services performed that are compensable under this Agreement and shall make such documents and records availa...
	Section 12.05 Conflict of Interest.  Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise confli...
	Section 12.06 Nondiscrimination.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marita...
	Section 12.07 Assignment Of Rights.  Contractor assigns to SMART all rights throughout the world in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, right to ideas, in and to all versions of the plans and specifications, if any, now or later...
	Section 12.08 Ownership And Disclosure Of Work Product.  All reports, original drawings, graphics, plans, studies, and other data or documents (“documents”), in whatever form or format, assembled or prepared by Contractor or Contractor’s subcontracto...

	ARTICLE 13.  Demand for Assurance.
	ARTICLE 14.  Assignment and Delegation.
	ARTICLE 15.  Method and Place of Giving Notice, Submitting INVOICES and Making Payments.
	ARTICLE 16.  Miscellaneous Provisions.
	Section 16.01 No Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by SMART of any breach of any term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or provision or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise co...
	Section 16.02 Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree t...
	Section 16.03 Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is required to an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
	Section 16.04 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties.
	Section 16.05 Applicable Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the substantive law of California, regardless of the law of conflicts to the contrary in any jurisdiction.  Venue for any action to enforce the te...
	Section 16.06 Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference.  They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.
	Section 16.07 Merger.  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of C...
	Section 16.08 Acceptance of Electronic Signatures and Counterparts.  The parties agree that this Contract, Agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related documents to be entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the signature of...
	Section 16.09 Prevailing Wage.  Contractor and each Subcontractor shall pay toall workers employed on the Work not less than the prevailing rate of wages as determined in accordance with the Labor Code as indicated herein.
	All contractors/vendors doing business with public agencies throughout the State of California (including SMART) shall comply with applicable labor compliance requirements including, but not limited to prevailing wages, SB 854, Labor Code Sections 172...
	Applicable projects are subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the California Department of Industrial Relations.
	Section 16.10 Time of Essence.  Time is and shall be of the essence of this Agreement and every provision hereof.

	Exhibit A Scope of Work & TIMELINE
	I. PURPOSE
	SMART’s Diesel-Multiple Unit (DMU) 110 requires repairs after its collision on 5/31/2018.  Initial repair assessments made by SMART, Nippon Sharyo, and Alstom Transportation Inc. identify the visible damage to be primarily focused to the Front Mask of...
	II. PROJECT MANAGEMENT
	All work to be initiated, coordinated, and authorized in writing by SMART’s Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance, Husani Longstreet.
	III. DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK
	A. SMART will arrange, coordinate, and be responsible for all costs associated with transporting DMU 110 to Alstom Transportation Inc.’s Mare Island Repair Facility located at:
	Alstom Transportation Inc. Mare Island Repair Facility
	Attn:  Shawn Gavne
	210 Pintado St
	Vallejo, CA 94592
	B. Upon receiving DMU 110 at Alstom Transportation Inc.’s Mare Island Facility, the DMU will be thoroughly examined.
	1. All exterior sheeting, interior panels, and fixtures will be removed, evaluated, and cataloged.
	2. Alstom Transportation Inc. will assess each part removed and identify any parts that can be reconditioned and reused.  This list will be provided to SMART with the report of any latent damage identified in Section 3.
	3. Any latent damage that is exposed during this evaluation process will be documented in a report that will be immediately sent to SMART’s Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance for review and next step determination.
	4. The initial repair assessment performed by SMART, Nippon Sharyo, and Alstom Transportation Inc. identified the following bolt on components that require replacement:
	SMART will provide Alstom Transportation Inc. with the above listed parts and Alstom Transportation Inc. will perform the replacement and repair labor.
	5. In addition to the parts and labor identified in Section 4, Alstom Transportation Inc. has identified and will perform the following repair work:
	i. The brackets behind the fiberglass nose are severely damaged and will be replaced.
	ii. The secondary structure has substantial damage with some of the bent brackets welded to plates, which are also welded to the structure.  Alstom Transportation Inc. will cut these damaged brackets from the plate and weld the new brackets on.
	iii. As Alstom Transportation Inc. repairs the front end of the DMU, which consists of mostly bolt-on components identified in Section 4, contractor will replace the electrical connects as required.
	6. All latent damage identified in Section 3 that SMART authorizes Alstom Transportation Inc. to repair in writing will be invoiced separately using a technician rate of $135 per hour.  If replacement of materials and other components not listed above...
	7. Alstom Transportation Inc. shall perform all repair labor per Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) standard and to original manufacturer specifications for DMU 110.
	8. Once Alstom Transportation Inc. has completed the repair work on DMU 110, contractor will reassemble all panels, create a report of all repair work, part replacement, and any other action Alstom Transportation Inc. performed and immediately contact...
	9. SMART will perform a final on-site inspection of DMU 110 and review the written report of all work with Alstom Transportation Inc.’s project manager.
	10. Upon successful review, SMART will authorize acceptance of all work in writing.
	11. Alstom Transportation Inc. repair scope does not provide painting and final finishing work for DMU 110.
	12. Alstom Transportation Inc. will be responsible for preparing DMU 110 for transport in accordance with SMART’s Superintendent of Vehicle Maintenance’s requirements. SMART will be responsible for arranging, coordinating, and all costs related to the...
	IV. WEEKLY INSPECTIONS
	SMART will perform weekly on-site inspections and monitor all progress of the repair work being performed on DMU 110.
	V. WORK TIMELINES
	Alstom Transportation Inc. shall complete the repair work described above 12 weeks from when Alstom Transportation Inc. receives DMU 110 at their Mare Island Repair Facility.  If additional time is needed due to unforeseen circumstances, Alstom Transp...
	VI. WARRANTY
	Alstom Transportation Inc. shall provide SMART with a ____ day warranty period on all labor performed on DMU 110 and a ____ day warranty period on all parts purchased by Alstom Transportation Inc on behalf of SMART for DMU 110.
	VII. ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA
	Upon final completion of all repair work listed above, SMART will perform a final on-site inspection.  Alstom Transportation Inc.’s project manager will walk SMART staff through all repair work and part replacement work performed on DMU 110.  SMART wi...
	Exhibit B Schedule of Rates

	11_ Funding Agreement Staff Report SCT Grants
	11_ SMART-SCT Route 56 Agreement - 06-12-18
	12_(Novato DT Station) Ph2 Staff Report
	12_(Reso No 2018-17) Downtown Novato Station
	12_(Reso No 2018-18) FY18-19 Budget Amendment Novato Station
	12_Letter from City of Novato
	12_Station (Novato) 7.9.18 Funding Phases 1-3
	Phase 1-3 Funding June 26

	12_Station (Novato) FP Change Order
	12_Station (Novato) Staff Report 4.6.16
	13_(Lease Amendment) Staff Report
	13_First Amendment to Lease
	14_(SB1029) Update FM
	14_(Senate Bill 1029) 06.20.18 Version
	14_Senate Bill 1029

	14_(TL)Email Correspondence RE SB 1029
	14_SB 1029 (Bill History)
	14_Transportation Assembly Committe
	14_V SB1029 5.16.18 Staff Report



